

Rural Working Group Recommendations and City Response

Information and how to use these tables

The material contained in the following Tables includes the original verbatim recommendations made by the Rural Working Groups identified opposite, a synopsis of the responses from the Rural Workshop of November 3, 2007, and the staff responses to the recommendations. The majority of the staff responses, where an Official Plan amendment is supported, are also documented in the accompanying documents - "Official Plan Review Preliminary Proposals' and 'Infrastructure Master Plan Review Preliminary Proposals' and the reference to the appropriate section is included in the tables below.

The Staff responses to the Working Group recommendations in the following tables

are divided into three categories and are colour coded as follows:

Recommendations supported and OP changes suggested

Recommendations not supported by staff

Recommendations not part of the Official Plan Review

Some have been implemented, others are being evaluated as part of the City' ongoing operations and some have been included in the work program for Rural Summit II. A small number of the recommendations are not the responsibility of the City to implement.

Recommendations not part of the Official Plan Review and not supported

Rural Working Groups and Participants

Development Outside of Villages	Villages Development	Groundwater Resources	Process	Agriculture
Marjorie Edwards Amy Kempster Howard Leger Judy Makin Jim McKenzie lola Price Jeffrey Shipman John Phillips Jackie Oblak Terry Hale Mike Westley Murray Chown Don Steeves Erwin Schulz	Denvil Brown Denise Foster Ken Holmes Richard McDonald Jeffrey Shipman Don Stephenson Eva Taylor-Isherwood Joe Welten Allan Haan Jill Hass David & Mary Major Jennifer Boyer Cathy Jordan	Bob Gregory Jill Hass Colin Heard Mary Hegan Linda McCormick Margaret McQuaid Peter Stanton Rob Passmore Erwin Schulz	Robert Alexander Kathy Black Bruce Collier	Robert Alexander Eric Bawden Gord Hawkes Jim McKenzie Nish Nolan Terry Otto Andy Terauds Joe Welten Jim Flewellyn Peter Ruiter Jack Shaw Stephen Lewis Richard Craig Jack MacLaren

Note: Not all those registered as participants attended throughout the process

Version Information

This version includes

- 1. Numbering corrections
- 2. Added individual comments provided to "Ottawa Talks" and received by email
- 3. Updated staff responses to recommendations and
- 4. Fully translated into French

Revised 14 th November 2008

Table of Contents

DEVELOPMENT OUTSIDE OF VILLAGES WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS	1
Matching Anticipated Growth (Development Outside of Villages) Providing for Orderly Growth (Development Outside of Villages) Providing Choice (Development Outside of Villages) Rural Natural Features (Development Outside of Villages) Natural Environment Areas (Development Outside of Villages) Significant Wetlands (Development Outside of Villages) Major Open Space (Development Outside of Villages) Compensation of Landowners (Development Outside of Villages)	10 12 16 18
VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS	24
Defining Part of City Character (Village Development) Long Range Plan (Village Development) Restructuring of OP (Village Development) Engaging Residents (Village Development) Pace and Character of Village Growth (Village Development) Timely Provision of Infrastructure (Village Development) Balanced and Viable Commuities (Village Development)	2 ² 2 ⁷ 2 ⁷ 2 ⁸
GROUNDWATER RESOURCES WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS	30
Co-ordination and Accountability (Groundwater)	30 33 36 36
PROCESS WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS	4
3.1.1 City of Ottawa Website Information and Design (Process)	

	3.2.1 Funding Application Timelines (Process)	4
	3.2.2 Standardised Format, Easily Accessible Petition Form and Process (Process)	
	3.2.3 Enabling Legislation (Process)	
	3.2.4 Timelines for Public to Obtain, Read and Provide Comments (Process)	52
	3.2.5 Recognizable Feedback for Resident's Work and Input (Process)	
	3.2.6 Equal Access to Development Information (Process)	
	3.2.7 Developer's Use of City Logo (Process)	54
	3.2.8 Community Design Plan Process (Process)	58
	3.2.9 Mechanisms to Correct City Documents (Process)	
	3.3.1 Response Time to the Public (Process)	
	3.3.2 Tracking Appropriate Performance Metrics on Key Products and Services (Process)	58
	3.3.3 311 Call Centre Response Times and Statistics and IVR System (Process)	58
	3.3.4 City Roads Maintenance & Inspection Based on Budget (Process)	59
	3.4.1 Public Notification Process (Process)	60
	3.4.2 Staff Relationship with Developers (Process)	
	3.4.3 Reflect Public Input into the Development Review Process (Process)	
	3.4.4 Global Overview of Planning (Process)	
	3.4.5 Quality and Access to Planning Associated Information (Process)	
	3.4.6 Communication (Process)	
	3.4.7 Conflicts of Interest (Process)	
٩G	RICULTURE WORKING GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS	68
	Issue A: Erosion of Land Base (Agriculture)	68
	Issue B. Minimum Separation Distances (MDS I) (Agriculture)	05
	Issue D. Need to Review and Clean up Agricultural Designation Boundary in West Carleton. (Agriculture)Issue E. Municipal Regulations and Other Matters(Agriculture)	7
	Issue F. Consideration of the Farming Community in Other Matters. (Agriculture)	/4
	Issue G: Clarity of Jurisdiction and Approval Process for Farm and Municipal Watercourses. (Agriculture)	
	Issue H. Provincial or Federal Regulations. (Agriculture)	
	1880E 11. 1 10VIIII I I 1 EUETAI 1/EGUIAUO118. (AGII I III III III III III III III III I	/ 3

Development Outside of Villages Working Group Recommendations

Matching Anticipated Growth (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
1. Pursue residential development polices, as suggested by most of the members of the Working Group, that follow the approach of Option One which is to accommodate additional growth in the General Rural Area. The four options the Working group considered included: Option One - increase density of development in the rural area by reducing lot size for residential lots across the board or by only decreasing lot sizes in clusters but continuing to permit 2 acre lots everywhere else. Option Two – maintain overall density but move to a conservation approach, i.e., encouraging clusters and permitting residential development on smaller lots, while leaving a portion of the land undeveloped Option Three – maintain the status quo of residential development generally in the form to be 2-acre lots by severance or subdivision as is permitted now. Option Four – reduce capacity by stopping subdivisions altogether, or allowing subdivisions only in specific areas with little of no residential development elsewhere.	 Support with caveats Targeted areas, alternative servicing, Must be more than just bedroom communities and have a handle on soft and hard services Clusters rather than scattered or strip The working group is forgetting other rural uses by just talking about residential development in this scenario. Need to know how this will work and be clear about the overall community view (strategic plan) Current model of scattered 2 acre lots encourages poor development and reliance on cars 	Disagree with the recommendation to increase the development potential in the Rural Area outside of Villages because 1. The PPS provides for limited development outside of settlement areas. Providing for more development outside of the exiting villages is contrary to this direction. 2. The new projection in terms of population growth is less at 2031 that originally anticipated by 2021 3. Current estimates of land supply both in villages and outside villages indicate that there is sufficient land supply to last beyond the 20-year planning horizon. 4. The Official Plan policies are reviewed every 5 years and will be adjusted if necessary at those times.	Staff recommend Option 2, with reduced lot sizes for 'conservation subdivisions' only, and supporting increased efforts to protect groundwater resources, the Natural Heritage System and the rural landscape. Recommendations on 'Conservation Subdivisions' are included in the Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.2 Development Outside of Villages

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
2. Include a comprehensive strategy for intensifying population density within the existing urban area in order to ease the pressure for the outward expansion of the urban boundary.	One response in agreement with the recommendation	Agree The Official Plan already includes detailed policies for intensification in key areas within the urban boundary. Revised policies will establish targets for this intensification. Changes to the Planning Act provide that urban expansions will only be considered at the time of an Comprehensive review.	Recommend policies for urban intensification targets area in the Preliminary Proposals See the Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.3 Urban Intensification
3. Configure rural development areas to allow smaller residential lot sizes while incorporating a communal 'common area' that would remain in its natural state to retain sustainable function of the land.	General agreement but concerned about the servicing implications of higher density development	Agree This is an opportunity to improve the sustainability of rural development. Policies should allow the consideration of smaller lot sizes where the overall density is not increased and some land is retained for farm use or conservation purposes to compensate for the smaller lots. This may only be appropriate for the development of large parcels and where private individual services on the smaller lots are possible.	Recommend Policies for Conservation Subdivisions that permit smaller lots and where part of the site is retained as a conservation area. See the Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.2 Development Outside of Villages
4. Utilize innovative methods of development (i.e. conservation development) and facilitate integration of new technologies.	 Support for communal servicing in rural area for environmental reasons May permit better location of development Better if considering cluster development Similar to 1 above 	Agree in part The City will reaffirm its intention to consider alternative technology and innovation when undertaking Environmental Assessments for public water and wastewater systems. However, the City is not prepared to enter into responsibility agreements for private communal systems. All development outside of established public service areas will be on the basis of individual private services.	City is clarifying and enhancing the commitment to consider alternative technology. The OP currently identifies the primary servicing method for the rural area is private services. Section 2.3.2 (4) of the Official Plan identifies when public including stand-alone public systems will be considered. See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.4 Rural Servicing: Alternative Servicing
5. Strengthen the involvement of rural /	Agreement to this principle is found in	Agree.	In Progress

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
local people in the process of planning for development in their area and in monitoring the implementation of plans to ensure that approved plans are implemented.	the responses to the Process and Village Working Group Papers	The Process, Groundwater and Village Working Groups have similar recommendations. In Villages and the Carp Corridor this can be accommodated as part of the Community Design Plan. The City consistently provides all registered Community Associations with advanced notification of new development proposed within their communities. The City has implemented online development tracking of current development proposals with the exception of applications submitted to the Committee of Adjustment. Community associations and other groups are able to register for direct circulation of new planning application notices for their area. Once circulated, the local association can reply with comments and suggestions to the Planner. The Rural Affairs Office can assist groups with registering for these notifications. Local governance was a significant topic of discussion at Rural Summit II. The top recommendation of the Summit (#1 of 122) was to implement a local governance pilot, involving rural residents in making decisions affecting their area. Details on this pilot project are being determined and are subject to the approval of a work plan by City Council. There will be a need to determine the scope of matters to be reviewed by the local governance group.	This is a process matter that sits outside the Official Plan and hence no policy changes are recommended. This has been incorporated in the work program from Rural Summit II .

Providing for Orderly Growth (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
6. Encourage the development of complete, self-contained rural communities to promote long-term sustainability.	Generally supported	Agree. Ensuring the long-term viability and sustainability of the existing Villages should be the City's first priority. This approach is consistent with the current objectives of the current Official Plan and is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement. Development outside of Villages supports many village facilities and the City will continue to provide this form of development as a housing choice.	Already an objective of the Official Plan See Recommendations for strengthening the Village polices in the Official Plan in the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Developments in Villages.
7. Design new rural communities and homes that are in harmony with the land, and that maintain the character of the rural area.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Enhance existing and add new polices related to: 1. Conservation Subdivision design 2. Sustainable Community Design and Green Buildings 3. Renewable Energy Facilities 4. Preservation of Groundwater resources	Proposed new policies are included in the Staff Preliminary Proposals See Section 5.2 Development Outside of Villages See Section 4.4 Sustainable Community Design and Green buildings See Section 5.3 Rural Servicing: Groundwater Resources See Section 6.2 Renewable Energy Resources
8. Direct growth to certain rural communities / hamlets that have been identified where growth could occur, ensuring sustainability criteria are met. Other areas should be identified where further growth should not occur, due to land use protection factors, water problems, etc	Similar to Cluster concept See 1 above	Agree in part This recommendation is focused on the creation of new Settlement Areas. The Official Plan already accommodates the potential to create new Villages. These would be evaluated in the same manner as village expansions. This would require a Community Design Plan to co-ordinate development, the provision of community facilities and provide a master servicing study.	Currently Implemented No policy changes to the Official Plan are recommended.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		The Official Plan continues to prohibit development in Agricultural Resource Areas, Mineral Aggregate Resource Areas, Natural Environment Areas and Significant Wetlands. Development is further regulated on lands adjacent to these areas and on land adjacent to existing Villages and the Urban Area. As the City's understanding of Groundwater resources grows, development on land that acts as a groundwater recharge areas or that presents a higher risk for groundwater contamination, may be further restricted.	
9. Direct commercial and industrial development towards designated rural business parks in order to avoid impacts on agricultural and other rural uses. Concurrently, a wide range of home- and farm- (or acreage) based businesses should be permitted.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part As a First Priority the Official Plan directs compatible commercial and employment uses to Villages. This approach is supported by the Village Working group recommendations. As a second priority, where commercial and industrial development is not appropriate for a Village location, development is encouraged to locate in the existing zoned commercial and industrial lands in the Rural Area. The comprehensive zoning by-law has identified rural industrial areas where development can most easily occur and these are in locations where the exposure to major roads is maximised. Beyond prezoning land in this manner there are limited mechanisms to encourage industrial or commercial land uses.	Currently Implemented The current priority for Commercial and industrial development is consistent with provincial policy and is supportive of the objective to provide complete communities which was recommended by the rural community No changes to this priority in the Official Plan are necessary See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Development in Villages

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		As a third priority the Official Plan permits industrial and commercial uses in a variety of locations in the rural area to provide the greatest flexibility and opportunity to encourage local economic development. In these locations a zoning change is required so that impacts on surrounding uses can be assessed. A wide range of uses such as those recommended by the working group are already permitted by the current Official Plan policies and are included in the new Comprehensive Zoning By-law.	
10. Encourage, to the extent possible, the development of industrial parks in areas with high densities of country estate lots.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree See response to 9 above. No policy changes is recommended	This recommendation is contrary to the recommended approach identified in 9 above.
11. Encourage agriculture-related or support services to locate in the planned rural business parks.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree These uses are already permitted by the Official Plan and in most cased by the zoning by-law. No policy change is recommended.	Already permitted by the Official Plan No Policy changes are recommended
12. Encourage new re-cycling businesses in the rural business parks in order to both generate rural employment and assist the City to cope with waste disposal challenges.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Selected clean re-cycling operations are permitted by the Official Plan and in most cases by the Zoning by-law. No policy change is recommended.	Already permitted by the Official Plan No Policy changes are recommended
13. Encourage environmentally friendly employment-generating activities such as tourism, educational	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Encouraging rural economic development is and objective of the City's economic	Already permitted by the Official Plan No Policy changes are recommended

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
enterprises, organic farming, home-based businesses, the arts, etc.		Development Group and the Rural Affairs Office. To assist in these efforts the Official Plan anticipates these types of uses in the rural area. Zoning amendments may be required to address compatibility and traffic issues. No land use policy change is needed to support his recommendation.	
14. Encourage "cluster type" development, as an alternative to the current pattern of rural country lot subdivisions.	Yes with caveats 1. Planned not haphazard 2. Community input into how this happens 3. Protects or supports environmental goals 4. If it retains more rural landscape 5. Can be supported by water resources and cumulative effects understood 6. Retains greenspace 7. Complete communities with soft services like village 8. Not just residential development 9. Buffering and room to grow Villages of tomorrow	Agree in part. See comments for working group recommendations 3 and 8 above. The Current Plan provides mechanisms for new Village development in the context of a citywide review, a Community Design Plan and supportive servicing studies. New policies for 'Conservation Subdivisions' are proposed. This needs to be considered in the context of the other recommendations and objectives.	Some changes to the Official Plan are proposed including policies for Conservation Subdivisions that permit smaller lots and-where part of the site is retained as a conservation area. See the Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.2 Development Outside of Villages
15. Coordinate development in rural areas with implementation of the future public transport system (road and rail).	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part This is normal planning practice and is linked to the ideas of Complete Communities and directing and supporting development in specific locations. The Transportation Master Planning process identifies necessary transportation infrastructure and new communities are designed to take advantage of existing infrastructure. The provision of rural OC Transpo service has received mixed responses from rural communities and suggests that a large	Currently Implemented No policy changes to the Official Plan are recommended. See the discussion in the Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.4 Rural Development

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		population is required to generate sufficient demand for these services. The future provision of transportation infrastructure, such as roads, and transit is made more efficient when servicing Villages rather than scattered development. A rural development strategy focused on Villages would be consistent with this recommendation. See the response to 8 above	
16. Protect fragile components of natural areas from degradation through good site planning, including incorporating designs that offset cumulative effects of surrounding developments.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agreed. Current policies in the OP support this approach. Staff is recommending expanding upon the use of Environmental Impact Statements for development in or adjacent to land identified as part of the Ottawa's Natural Heritage system. The guidelines for these Statements are also being revised.	Some changes to the Official Plan are proposed such which identify the significant features and defines when Environmental Impact Statements are required See also the proposed sustainable design policies that are being added to Section 4.4 Sustainable Community Design and Green Buildings
17. Encourage alternative and innovative servicing systems, e.g., small bore and communal wells, heat recycling, etc., research the Phoenix AZ model, learn from the experience of similar developments in Europe.	Feeling that the City should consider "stand-alone" servicing for some rural communities rather than extension of central services. Others concerned that these systems should not be privately operated and maintained	Agree in part The City will reaffirm its commitment to consider alternative technology and innovation when undertaking Environmental Assessments for public water and wastewater systems. However, the City is not prepared to enter into responsibility agreements for private communal systems. All development outside of established public service areas will be on the basis of individual private services.	City clarifies and enhances the commitment to consider alternative technology. The OP currently identifies the primary servicing method for the rural area is private services. Section 2.3.2 (4) of the Official Plan identifies when public including stand-alone public systems will be considered. See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.4 Rural Servicing: Alternative Servicing

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
18. Emphasize as a prime consideration in the review of future residential development using well and septic systems the limitations of ground water resources and the short- and long-term implications for existing, adjacent development.	Agreement from one respondent	Agree. See also recommendations of the Groundwater Working Group to implement the next Phase of the adopted Groundwater Management Strategy	Staff is setting the framework for the second phase of this strategy and is including Groundwater Management Strategy in the Infrastructure Master Plan. See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.3 Rural Servicing: Groundwater Resources and The preliminary proposals for the Infrastructure Master Plan Section 2 Groundwater Resources
19. Plan Mineral Resource areas and adjacent lands to ensure nonconflicting use, e.g., no residential or NEA directly adjacent; buffering of boundaries to isolate noise and visual incursions to adjacent lands; site design to include protection of water resources (surface & ground) and other natural resources as required.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The Official Plan currently identifies, by appropriate designation, areas of high quality Limestone and Sand and Gravel Resources. The policies for these areas prevent land uses that will result in the sterilisation of these resources in the future. In addition buffering policies ensure that new uses that may conflict with or be adversely affected by the future extraction on these lands do not develop. Current policies for the designation and protection of these resource areas conform to the Provincial Policy Statement. No policy change is recommended.	No changes to the Mineral Resource Area polices are required however, some recommendations from the Ground water Working group may impact these land uses. See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.3 Rural Servicing: Groundwater Resources
20. Ensure that the separation required by the MDS between agricultural and non- agricultural uses is incorporated as a buffer zone on the lands acquired for development of the non-agricultural use.	Agreement from one respondent	Agree The MDS separation distance applies to both the developing land and the agricultural land. Some flexibility is built into the separation calculation. However, conflicting land uses around existing farm operations can have the effect of preventing the full expansion of the farm operation. Application of separation	Some changes to the Official Plan are proposed. MDS will continue to be applied to all non-agricultural development. Recommendations in the preliminary proposals provide greater flexibility in the application of MDS II for expanding livestock operations. See Staff Preliminary Proposals

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		distances, independent from the MDS, is	Section 5.5 Agriculture
		still being investigated by staff and was	
		not included in the Staff Preliminary	Further research is required on the
		proposals. This separation distance may	application of additional separation
		not be based on scientific analysis and the	distances.
		City may not rely upon support from the	
		Ministry of Agriculture and Food to	
		defend these. The implications of these	
		separation distances on different land uses	
		and other landowners need to be	
		considered. For example does it apply to	
		subdivisions only or should separation also	
		apply to severances. Should the separation	
		distances apply to individual farms or only	
		to land designated Agricultural Resource	
		Area?	
		A new policy will be added to the plan to	
		permit some variance to be considered for	
		expanding farm operations in this	
		situation.	

Providing Choice (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
21. Accommodate the desire for	Responses split	Disagree.	No changes to the Official Plan are
increasing the availability of severed	 Concern over cumulative impact of 	Creation of lots by subdivision is preferred	recommended
lots by removing the current	severances	to avoid strip development and to provide	
restriction of only one severance per	 Questioning the basis of the 10 ha 	for better assessment of groundwater and	
land holding in the General Rural	retained parcel (some want no	natural features. Past practices of lot	
Area, as long as the remaining land	restriction others think 10 ha too small)	creation by severance have resulted in strip	
mass remains in excess of 25 acres.	 Lot sizes for severed lots were debated 	development along municipal roads. The	
This will allow farmstead families	also.	current restriction on number of lots and	
on General Rural Area land who are	 Some perceive a greater threat to 	retained land area are intended to prevent	
no longer engaged in agriculture, to	Agriculture through MDS from	this pattern of development from continuing.	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
continue to live on the family farmstead, while allowing the remainder of the land to be freed up for other uses.	 Some shared concern for loss of rural character by allowing more scattered development 	The minimum lot size for severed lots should be retained at 0.8 ha. Its also desirable to create a difference in the form and density of development outside of Villages, which the larger lot size does. Smaller lots for conservation subdivisions may be considered where overall density is not reduced and servicing studies support smaller lots. See 3 above	
22. Require a mix of housing, including smaller, affordable homes, when development proposals are reviewed.	Agreement from one respondent that house sizes should get smaller not the lots	Agree in part The City cannot control the mix or cost of housing at the time of development. The greatest opportunity to encourage the provision of a variety of housing types and sizes occurs in Villages and in particular in villages that include a 'public service area' (City water and sewers). Current City policy supports a mix of housing in Villages and community design plans for Villages must take this into consideration. In addition the current plan permits accessory apartments wherever dwellings are permitted in the rural area.	Currently Implemented to the extent possible No change to the Official Plan is required
23. Accommodate a range of different types of structures / housing forms (i.e. multiunit) for potential rural residents.	Disagree - multi -unit dwellings should not be permitted and only limited numbers should be allowed in villages. One response.	Agree See 22 Above	Currently Implemented to the extent possible. No change to the Official Plan is required
24. Lobby the provincial government to develop building codes for the use of new technologies for heating, power, water, sewage, etc., as a means of conservation and energy savings.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The building code was recently amended in to support many forms of alternative technology. The first step is to include the policies in the Official Plan that are required	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed in the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 4.4 Sustainable Community Design and Green Buildings and Section 6.2 Renewable Energy Facilities

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		by changes to the Planning Act, and support sustainable design, green and energy efficient buildings and alternative energy generation. These policy changes are proposed.	
		The evolution on the Building Code and building practices are ongoing and should also be lobbied for and encouraged by the Building and Real Estate industries.	

Rural Natural Features (Development Outside of Villages)

Narai Natarai i Catareo (Bereiopinione Gaterae el Timageo)			
Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
25. Define the meaning of "significant" so that it can be applied in a practical way for planning and development purposes. This would reduce transaction time for developers and conflict between interested parties.	 Response focused on Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) process Those opposing development in RNF seem to do so because of the perceived ineffectiveness of the EIS process, what constitutes significant land and what happens to land if it is protected from development. 	Agree. Many of these issues were flagged in the white paper, "Ottawa's Natural System - How well it is working?" The system will incorporate all of the lands that are considered "significant" consistent with the Provincial policy Statement. Staff are also undertaking a review of the EIS Guidelines and these revisions will be available for consultation in the fall, 2008	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed and include a definition of the Natural Heritage System is proposed to identify all of the resources that would be considered as part of this system
26. Clarify the criteria for identifying significant natural features and publicize these throughout the development and planning communities, with decision-makers and the public in order than they can be applied consistently to achieve similar goals to recommendation #1, directly above.	One response in agreement as it would indicate that environmental studies are required.	Agree See 25 above	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See 25 above

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
27. Spell out specific requirements for the protection of features adjacent to but not directly impacted by the proposed development.	One response in agreement as it would clarify City requirements	Agree Adjacent land policies will be added to the Official Plan requiring an EIS to be undertaken when developing adjacent to specified woodland, wetland or other feature.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See 25 above
28. Review the original NESS evaluation undertaken in the 1990s with a higher degree of detail to establish current conditions and improve the overall information and understanding of systems, as a basis for improved decision-making.	Agreement with the recommendation from one respondent	Agree in principle Such a review would require an extensive program of fieldwork, which raises issues of cost and implementation. The most efficient means to achieve the updating of the NESS data remains fieldwork conducted through subwatershed studies and Environmental Impact Statements (EIS) completed for development proposals. Notwithstanding this, updating of the City's high-level tree cover information is underway. Field information is being added to a GIS database and links are being established to other data sources to create citywide environmental database.	In Progress No change to the Official Plan is required See the staff preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System. regarding updated mapping and future work programs.
29. Undertake a thorough review of the overall process by which significant natural features are identified, assessed and protected. This includes a comprehensive review of the EIS process to improve its transparency, integrity, accountability and technical effectiveness.	Agreement with the recommendation from one respondent	Agree Same as 28 above	In Progress No change to the Official Plan is required See the staff preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System. regarding updated mapping and future work programs

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
30. Follow-up monitoring is required to ensure that protection measures are adequate, properly implemented and maintained properly in order to sustain the ecological value of features post development.	One respondent agreed with the recommendation but shared concern about the resources that would be needed.	Agree This is being explored in more detail by staff who are investigating approaches to evaluate predevelopment studies and the results of their implementation	In Progress This sits outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required
31. Provide on-going public education (land owners and stakeholders) as to the rationale for protecting these areas at an ecosystem level (i.e. ensure the system is retained in its natural state and important natural values / eco-services protected for the benefit of the whole community and future generations).	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree There are a number of stewardship programs that do this. Below is a link to resources on the web, which include landowner manuals and stewardship support. http://ottawa.ca/residents/environment/city hall/getgreen/greenspace/natural areas prot ection en.html Conservation Authorities provide considerable information on the protection of ecosystems associated with their watersheds. There is considerable information available if people are interested. Rural Connections website (ottawa.ca/rural) will be updated to include links to stewardship programs and information.	In Progress This sits outside of the Official Plan and others also undertake much Public Education. No change to the Official Plan is required
32. Adopt a similar landowner compensation approach for lands designated Rural Natural Feature as recommended in issue #8, below. Note This recommendation references the suggestions of the working group for recommendations 49 - 54 below	See 44 & 51below	Disagree The policies for land in Rural Natural Features permit development subject to an EIS being completed and the owner demonstrating that construction on, and the use of the land, will not have an adverse impact on the natural features and functions.	No change to the Official Plan is required

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
33. Capitalize on local knowledge in the management of Rural Natural Features.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree. This is the basis for stewardship programs that encourage and develop landowner expertise.	Public Education and stewardship initiatives sit outside of the Official Plan and therefore no changes are required. Some discussion of the stewardship initiatives that are proposed can be found in the staff Preliminary proposals Section 6.4 Compensation Policies for Wetlands and Other Natural Lands.
34. Establish recreational regulations on City-owned lands within this designation, e.g., restrict ATVs and mountain biking to pre-determined areas.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This already exists for some areas. Management Plans exist for some City owned lands and deal with public access and use of ATVs and mountain bikes as well as environmental management and other recreational uses of the land.	In Progress Mangaement plans sit outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required
35. Provide for protection of components of natural areas that contribute to the natural function of the feature.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree. This is the intention behind the current Official Plan policies and the changes proposed as part of the Staff Preliminary proposals. The requirement for an EIS ensures that the significant components and functions of the natural features are identified and protected.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed. A definition of the Natural Heritage System is proposed and added polices require an EIS on or adjacent to environmental features. See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System.
36. Provide for protection of features from degradation through good site planning, including incorporating designs that offset the cumulative effects of development.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Same as 35 above. Also enhanced design policies are proposed that will encourage sustainable design and energy efficiency.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See 35 above Also See proposed changes to the Official Plan in the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 4.4 Sustainable Community Design and Green Buildings and Section 6.2 Renewable Energy Facilities

Natural Environment Areas (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
37. Establish a management plan for city-owned Natural Environment Areas. Preparation of such plans should include the community and landowners of adjacent privately owned lands within or adjacent to the designation. Such plans would include provisions for limiting access for low impact activities such as hiking or cross-country ski trails	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The City has an approved program for the completion of management plans for all Natural lands in rural Ottawa that are in City ownership. The preparation of these plans is conducted as a public process involving interested community members and includes management of public access including various forms of recreation.	In Progress Mangaement plans sit outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
38. Consult with landowners to develop an effective proactive acquisition strategy for land in the Natural Environment Area. When acquisition is not possible, economic incentives should be provided to private landowners, e.g. reduction of taxes for appropriate stewardship, or purchase of development rights	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree The City currently has a policy that provides for the acquisition of lands designated Natural Environment Areas when requested to do so by landowners. For landowners wishing to retain the land, guidance on the funding programs and tax incentives that are available can be obtained from the City and the Conservation Authorities.	The current polices address the acquisition of land within the Natural Environment Area designation and no further changes to the Official Plan are required. See also Staff Preliminary Proposals. Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands
39. Land in a Natural Environment Area and within 5 km. of the urban boundary should be a high candidate for City purchase	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree. As part of the consideration of future urban expansions the City will explore all available means to secure significant natural areas lying on land identified as future urban areas.	In Progress The discussion of the urban boundary and possible future urban expansions include the intention that any impacted Natural Areas would be secured. See staff preliminary proposals Section 1.2 Urban Boundary

Development Outside of Villages Significant Wetlands (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
40. Modify the Official Plan to incorporate the provincially significant wetlands in the ecoregions within the Canadian Shield, in order to be consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This change is being made as part of the OP review	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System.
41. Incorporate a higher level of protection with regard to road construction in areas adjacent to wetlands that are provincially significant, e.g., Riddell Drive as a potential inter-provincial bridge corridor.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This will be addressed as part of the Environmental Assessment (EA) undertaken for the inter-provincial crossing. In addition proposed changes to the Official Plan to identify Ottawa's Natural Environment System provided more information to guide the Environmental Assessment.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System.
42. Incorporate regular / ongoing monitoring to ensure up-to-date information is available regarding provincially significant wetland boundaries and complexes.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Boundaries and complexes are identified by the Province or at the time of development review. Studies required at the time of development review remain the most cost effective method for the City to update boundaries of natural areas. The Official Plan requires that the zoning bylaw be amended to include the most upto-date information as it becomes available, although major changes require an amendment to the Official Plan.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System.
43. Consult with landowners to reduce the negative impacts of snowmobiles, ATV, forestry, etc.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This consultation occurs periodically where the municipality has a role and authority (i.e., as relates to by-laws, use of municipal land, or the preparation of management	In Progress Stewardship of private property and Management Plans for city owned land, fall outside of the Official Plan.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		plans.) On private property this is a stewardship issue. This type of stewardship advice is also provided by provincial Ministries and Conservation Authorities on an ongoing basis	No change to the Official Plan is required
44. Develop a procedure and policy for the purchase of privately owned land on which wetlands are situated, for the purpose of restoration and enhancement.	Most opinion was based upon the Staff White Paper "Compensation for Wetlands and other Environmental Lands" Generally there was broad but not universal or unconditional support for stewardship incentives and other forms of compensation of landowners Many recognised that funding would be difficult. Most wanted to set criteria on who would be eligible and ensure that compensation was offered where there was real economic loss. Many cautioned that the City should not create situations where windfall profits would occur. Many believed that alternatives to acquisition should also be considered	Disagree Staff do not support the compensation for loss of development potential and value that might occur when lands are identified as provincially significant wetlands. There is no legal requirement or custom in Canada to compensate for changes in planning policy that increase or decrease development potential. The cost of such a policy is also an issue. The basis for this is outlined the in the staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands	See also staff Preliminary Proposals. Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands

Major Open Space (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
45. Make additions to Major Open	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	There are no public lands that meet the
Space areas to enhance the	opposition to this recommendation was	The major open space designation applies to	criteria for a Major Open Space designation
Greenspace Network.	received	publicly owned land that is generally	at the present time. No change to the Official
		waterfront land or major public parks that	Plan is required.
		primarily provide recreational opportunities.	
		Additions to this designation come through	
		the development process or public	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		acquisition. Additional park and recreational land will be added to the Major Open Space designation as acquired over time.	
46. Explore the possible extension of the urban network of recreational pathways into the rural areas, to provide connections among rural communities, and to provide tourism, heritage, and greenspace benefits to the rural area, taking into consideration the principle of not trespassing on privately owned property, and respecting the rights and privileges of the rural property owners.	Agreed and suggested acquiring narrow strips of land for trails seems more economic than buying large areas of land. One respondent	Agree City actions to identify these links were previously opposed by some landowners. However, with the adoption of the City's Cycling plan and Rural Pathways Plan some changes to the City's cycle paths may necessitate changes to Schedules in the Official Plan. Individual Community Design Plans for Villages can link to and incorporate these pathways. In the past the rural community has cautioned that such plans should respect the fact the most rural land is in private ownership. Pathways were the topic of one of the top recommendations from Rural Summit II. The recommendation reads as follows (#4 of 122): The City should develop a policy that will ensure that the connectivity between village pathways through the rural area, does not trespass on privately owned property, and that full respect is provided for the rights of private property owners.	Changes to the Official Plan include an update Cycling Plan and revised multi-use pathways for both the urban and rural areas
47. Determine the need for a Major Open Space management plan, as there is in the urban area.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The City has an approved program for the completion of management plans for all Natural lands in rural Ottawa that are in City ownership. The preparation of these plans is conducted as a public process involving interested community members and includes management of public access including various forms of recreation.	In Progress Management plans sit outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
Trecommendation	Tubic Comment	Stail Hesponse	5W11 110 905W15
48. Establish a special Task Force to look into the feasibility of establishing co-ordinated "natural-state" environmental areas using lands now designated mainly as Significant Wetlands South and East of the Canadian Shield, Natural Environmental Area, and Rural Natural Features. Given the lack of such spaces in the rural area, the Rural Natural Features Area might be examined to determine if some lands could be converted to Major Open Space. Significant Wetlands South and East of the Canadian Shield, the Natural Environmental Area, and Rural Natural Features, if looked at in combination, constitute a huge open space which may offer long-term opportunities for the establishment of major co-ordinated "natural-state" environmental parks that could place Ottawa in an enviable role with respect to (i) environmental education, (ii) the preservation of natural flora and fauna, particularly endangered species, (iii) protection of watersheds, and (iv) spin-off employment for local people. Since this would likely involve substantial purchases of land now designated as Rural Natural Features, the Task Force mandate would have to encompass development of funding	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part The City has already adopted a Management Plan for the Marlborough Forest and has already established a Marlborough Forest Advisory Committee. No lands designated Natural Environment Area or Significant Wetlands South and East of the Canadian Shield in and around the Marlborough Forest will be re-designated as Major Open Space. No development is permitted in these designations and much of this land is already in City ownership. The City will continue to acquire land in this area as opportunities are presented. How the lands are ultimately used will be determined by a Management Plan, which has as its basic purpose, environmental protection. The environmental designations do not preclude the enviro-park uses suggested by the working group The quality and significance of surrounding lands designated Rural Natural Features is determined as development is proposed and much of this land remains in private ownership. Since land in this designation permits development under certain conditions there is no desire to acquire this land to expand City landholdings.	No change to the Official Plan is required

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
options and take a long-term view of implementation. Note that a low cost first step could include revisions to the Marlborough Forest Management Plan, but is accepted that the work of the Task Force would require both adequate funding and time, hence a moratorium on development in targeted areas would be required.			
49. Undertake a study to determine the need for recreational sports fields in the rural area.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The City has already undertaken the Sportsfield Strategy that does evaluate the Sportsfield needs city wide http://www.ottawa.ca/calendar/ottawa/citycouncil/hrssc/2004/02-19/ACS2004-PEO-COM-0004.htm	Currently Implemented This matter sits outside the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required

Compensation of Landowners (Development Outside of Villages)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
50. Ensure that affected landowners are	There was general agreement on the need to	Agree.	In Progress
consulted before any new	consult with landowners early in the process	The City can advise landowners if City-	This is a process matter that lies outside the
designation studies are initiated, and	but no additional specific input was received	initiated studies potentially lead to	Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan
that they are involved throughout the		identification of new wetlands. The City can	is required.
process.		also advise landowners when development	
		applications trigger an evaluation, where	
		there are opportunities through the	
		development review process.	
		The City cannot undertake to advise	
		landowners of evaluations initiated by other	
		parties, such as Provincial Ministries that are	
		unknown to the City.	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
51. In consultation with landowners, incorporate the essence of the "Augusta resolution" into the preamble of the updated Official Plan.	Most opinion was based upon the Staff White Paper "Compensation for Wetlands and other Environmental Lands" Generally there was broad but not universal or unconditional support for stewardship incentives and other forms of compensation of for landowners Many recognised that funding would be difficult. Most wanted to set criteria on who would be eligible and ensure that compensation was offered where there was real economic loss. Many cautioned that the City should not create situations where windfall profits would occur. Many believed that alternatives to acquisition should also be considered	Disagree This recommendation is not supported. There are two matters addressed in the Augusta resolution: Compensation, which is addressed in 44 above and Property Rights The province has determined that the municipality will have jurisdiction over certain matters regarding land use development. There are a series of checks and balances put in place by the Act, including procedures and regulations, which the City must follow to ensure it is complying with the law. There is no delegation, such as anticipated by the Augusta resolution, to be given to ordinary residents and landowners. The City has no authority to award such a right under the Act. To the best of its ability and in accordance with all the applicable legislation, the City has ensured that residents are part of the development process. Under the <i>Planning Act</i> , there are sufficient checks and balances to ensure that the rights of individual landowners are not ignored—the notice provisions, requirements of public hearings and the appeal process are all designed to provide the mechanisms of "fundamental justice" to landowners that disagree with the City's planning decisions.	See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
52. Establish a process whereby the City will negotiate the purchase of land, at market value, from the landowner if re-designation of their property, which will be more restrictive, is required for the public good. If a purchase agreement cannot be reached, then the land re-designation will not take place while the property is under the current ownership.	Agreement with fair compensation but disagreement with the compensation for increased valued based upon future development. One suggested that if future potential values are to be considered then property taxation should be adjusted from farm taxes to market value taxation.	Disagree in part Staff disagrees with the recommendation requiring compensation if the designation of land as wetlands is more restrictive. At the same time, it is City policy that where the City acquires land that it is undertaken based upon market value. The policies of Section 5.2.1 (4-6) of the Official Plan incorporate this principle. In such a situation if a landowner disagrees with the City's assessment of value arbitration can be requested under the provisions of the <i>Expropriations Act</i> .	See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands
53. Establish a rural property acquisition strategy, which will adequately protect natural features through a plan for compensating the affected landowners.	See 51 above	Disagree See 51 above	See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 6.4 Compensation Policy for Wetlands and other Natural Lands
54. The City should consider innovative ways of raising the funds (i.e. the Green Hydro model) required to purchase re-designated lands.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received.	Agree The City is continually looking at funding mechanisms to achieve its objectives.	In Progress This is a process matter that lies outside the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required
55. The City should investigate ways to capture some of the financial value that it creates when it re-designates land for development.	Agree Property taxation rates should be geared to any increase in land value due to planning approval. One respondent.	Agree in part Increased land value is normally captured through land taxation.	In Progress This is a process matter that lies outside the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required

Village Development Working Group Recommendations

Defining Part of City Character (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
56. The Official Plan should make clear	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Changes have been made to the preamble <i>to</i>
statements as to the value of the 26	opposition to this recommendation was		Section 2.2, Managing Growth to talk about
villages within the city boundaries	received		villages and the role of villages in the city
and that they are an asset to be			as a whole.
preserved. This should be stated			See Staff Preliminary Proposals
within Section 2 - Strategic			Section 5.1 Development in Villages
Directions, and supported by the			
Ottawa 20/20 principles found in			
Section 1 of the Official Plan. In the			
Village section of the plan, the			
overall vision should be reiterated.			
The associated policies will direct			
City Council and staff to support			
this vision and the village policies in			
Volume 2C of the Official Plan.			

Long Range Plan (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
57. The community, staff and City	Plans linked to village character and	Agree	In Progress
Council should review all of the	should not be the same. Timing should	The draft proposals recommend that a	See Staff Preliminary Proposals
current Village Plans. The objective	be linked to capacity of infrastructure	community design plan be done for a	Section 5.1 Development in Villages
should be to complete a review of	and development pressure and where	village when an expansion is	
all Village Plans within 5 years.	community is actively involved	contemplated or communal or central	
Some villages will have simpler		services are being considered or when a	
requirements than others and the		large area of vacant land within the	
priority among the villages will be		village is proposed for development (50	
identified by applying a set of		hectares+). It recommends that for	
criteria. Lower priority villages		other villages, a public meeting be held	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
could begin a process with limited staff support.		every five years to consider needs and challenges.	
58. Volume 2C of the Official Plan should be reviewed from a structural point of view and to identify any inconsistencies between the main policies of the Official Plan and any of the existing policies for the villages.	One response that disagreed Discrepancies should be retained.	Agreed Volume 2C needs to be reviewed. Any changes would require an Official Plan Amendment and would open the plans to appeal. Therefore, the review of Volumes 2B and 2C needs to be careful and comprehensive. This will be part of the ongoing work program.	In Progress See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Development in Villages
59. All Community Design Plans should be prepared in a way to facilitate their adoption as Secondary Plans. This means that the CDP could still include the wide range of information and recommendations that are currently in them, but one section will pertain specifically to land-use planning. It will be possible to extract this section and adopt it as a Secondary Plan. In some of the smaller villages the choice may be made to simply have a policy statement outside the plan. The choice to do that would always be there.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree A method to do this has been developed. When the CDP is complete, one portion of it related to land-use policies can be extracted as a secondary plan.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Development in Villages
60. The Comprehensive Official Plan Review, which is on its own five- year cycle, will not consider the individual Village Plans but will review the village policies in the	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agreed Proposed new policies on the Village boundaries propose a mechanism to ensure regular review of secondary plans as recommended in 61. Every	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.5 Expansion of Urban and Village Boundaries and Section 5.1 Development in Villages

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
main plan.		five years staff in conjunction with the community will review the amount of land in all villages and consider the need to provide additional lands.	
61. Every five years after a Village Plan is prepared, the City should hold a public meeting to determine if the plan needs to be updated. The Official Plan will include criteria for determining if an update is required. The criteria currently in the Official Plan include: a. Are the assumptions underpinning the plan still valid? b. Have policy priorities changed? c. Are the policies in the Plan being implemented? d. Are the policies having the desired outcomes?	Generally agree 5 year cycle provides a good opportunity to re-evaluate assumptions pressures and look at goals	Agree. Staff will prepare a proposal for two types of village plans, public meeting for plans, review of plans,	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Development in Villages
62. In all cases, a Community Design Plan will be required if the boundary is being expanded or if public services are being introduced.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agreed. Current policy supports this recommendation proposed plans add a requirement for a CDP where there is large area of undeveloped land within the Village boundary.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.5 Expansion of urban and Village Boundaries

Restructuring of OP (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
63. Restructure Section 3.7.1 of the	One respondent Agreed.	Agreed.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed
Official Plan on Villages to capture		However, no one section of the plan	See Staff Preliminary Proposals
all aspects of village planning		should be read in isolation – many	Section 1.5 Expansion of Urban and Village
through sub-headings and references		sections of the Plan apply to villages.	Boundaries and
to other parts of the Plan.		Staff has introduced sub-headings and	Section 5.1 Development in Villages
		some additional cross-references to other	
		parts of the Official Plan to aid	
		interpretation.	

Engaging Residents (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
64. The section of the Official Plan dealing with Community Design Plans should be amended to require that, during an initial meeting for such a plan, participants should be involved in reviewing and advising on a consultation strategy for the project. The strategy will include such initiatives as described above	One respondent Agreed. But developers should not be permitted to participate at this review	Agree This is already identified in the Official Plan. Figure 2.5.6, A3 already provides this as a preliminary step in a Community Design Plan	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Changes to Figure 2.5.6 Structure of Community Design Plans - pages 10 -11 OP Document 2
65. The consultation strategy will not only aim to involve a wide cross-section of the population but will recognize that the affected public may live outside of the village itself.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agreed. This has been added to Figure 2.5.6 of the Official Plan	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See_Staff Preliminary Proposals Changes to Figure 2.5.6 Structure of Community Design Plans - pages 10 -11 OP Document 2

Pace and Character of Village Growth (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
66. The community, through the Community Design Plan, needs first and foremost to develop a vision for the village. The residents need to identify the qualities and characteristics of the village that they want to preserve while recognizing that things will change. In addition, the City should develop a design guideline for village development in the style of others that have already been completed. There needs to be a mechanism to control the pace of growth in a village.	General agreement. Both the overall building density and amount of development per year are concerns. Density linked to design and support infrastructure. Plans need to tangibly capture village character.	 Agree City staff will develop a design guideline for village development to assist in CDPs. The best mechanism to control the growth of a village is to designate only the amount of land that is required for the planning period. Whenever the Village proposes to expand, a comprehensive plan would be required. This is the mechanism that staff would support. The draft policy proposal is suggesting that villages provide sufficient land for 10 years rather than for 20 years to allow the brakes to be put on if that is the desire, before additional land is added. 	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.1 Development in Villages

Timely Provision of Infrastructure (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
67. In order to ensure that infrastructure	Agreed that infrastructure should be in	Agree	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed
keeps pace with development, a	place to support development.	The draft policies are emphasising that any	See Staff preliminary Proposals
community design plan that provides		community design plan to support	Section 5.1 Development in Villages and
for additional development on vacant	Opinion split on the use of alternative	expansion, will be supported by, among	See Changes to Figure 2.5.6 Structure of
land or in an expansion area should	technology where this links to	other things, a Master Servicing Study and a	Community Design Plans - pages 10 -11
identify the hard and soft	communal services. Implications of	Financial Analysis.	OP Document 2
infrastructure that must be in place	communal systems need to be		See also
before development can go ahead.	understood such as cost, pace of growth,		Section 5.4 Rural Servicing: Alternative
Also, a community design plan that	density etc. and the capacity of the		Servicing
evaluates servicing options must	natural infrastructure needs to be		

consider the full range of options	considered.	
including emerging technologies.		

Balanced and Viable Commuities (Village Development)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
68. The City should support and	Agree provided facilities and services	Agree	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed
facilitate a viable, balanced	were requested by the community and	• Throughout the Official I	Plan are See Staff Preliminary Proposals
community. The Official Plan	efforts are made to reduce strip	commitments to supporti	ing "complete Section 5.1 Development in Villages
should more explicitly direct non-	development outside villages.	communities". It is one of	of the strategic and
residential uses to villages.		objectives in part 2 of the	e plan. See <u>Changes to Figure 2.5.6 Structure of</u>
Community Design Plans should		• Existing policy 3.7.2, 4a)	
address those objectives that support		when a development of a	a non-residential Document 2
variety and choice and liveability.		use is proposed in the Ge	eneral Rural
In many cases this may involve		Area that an evaluation b	be done as to
facilitating public or private		whether or not this would	ld be better
initiatives supportive of the vision		placed in a village.	
for the village.		• The premise of the OP to	oday is that rural
		development will be focu	used on villages.

Groundwater Resources Working Group Recommendations

Co-ordination and Accountability (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
69. The City is strongly encouraged to "manage" groundwater resources with clearly identified accountabilities as it currently manages water and wastewater within the serviced areas of the city, and to take the lead in moving forward on a watershed-based source-protection framework.	Community divided – Sense of an important role for the City but possibly not management – City should ensure that in the future the community and the City's decision-making is better informed as to the impact of the development on groundwater resources and existing users. This requires a certain amount of data and understanding of local groundwater systems by the City and other approval agencies, i.e. CAs.	Agree in part But authority and powers are still being determined. Changes to the OP recommended to expand and restructure Section 2.4.4 and incorporate Groundwater Strategy components	Some strengthening of the OP policy with regard to monitoring and modelling aquifers. Proposed Hydrogeology Guidelines and commitment to next phase of the City's Groundwater Strategy See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.3 Rural Servicing Groundwater Resources
70. The City could identify a Department and create a position for a Director of Groundwater Resources with the responsibility of closely monitoring the "before" state and the "after" effects of any approved development or change in land use.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part The City needs to make it easier for people to get information and action. City assigns responsibility to staff or automatically forwards inquiry /complaint to appropriate authority with request that City be advised of the outcome. Staff is still working on this matter.	In Progress This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Characterization of Resources (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
71. The City should complete	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Proposed polices for Water and
'groundwater characterization'	opposition to this recommendation was	1. Add requirement for a Groundwater	Subwatershed Plans have been added to
reports at the same time as it	received	Characterisation Study as a part of future	Section 2.4.3 of the Official Plan.
undertakes Watershed and		Watershed and Subwatershed Studies	See Staff Preliminary Proposals

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
Subwatershed studies in the City. These 'characterization reports' are to be used to develop groundwater capacity allocation and management plans to guide new development within the watershed.		2. Complete Groundwater Characterisation Studies for Villages, development on private wells in the urban area and where there is heavy development pressure in the General Rural Area.	Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Environment System pages 81 & 82 Characterisation studies for most villages have already been completed and would be reviewed at the time of a CDP for the Village. Characterisation studies for lands in Urban Ottawa are in the work program.
72. The City could complete a review of all hydrogeological studies, aquifer vulnerability studies, watershed and sub-watershed studies, and other work already commissioned by the City to determine currency, existence of gaps, soundness of science, and collect watershed data into one accessible library.	There is a need for the City to be a repository of information and data and hence a role in collecting data and monitoring groundwater conditions. A reasonable unobtrusive approach is required that includes effective education efforts.	Agree. That it is appropriate to compile into an accessible library, and review for quality and relevance, all previous studies related to subwatershed studies and Groundwater analysis and in the City. This may be achieved as part of a proposed future subwatershed study.	In Progress This is a process recommendation that lies outside of the Official Plan and will be included in City work programs. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Sustainability, Quality and Quantity (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
73. The City should implement the next	No additional input in support or in	Agree	In Progress
phase of the groundwater	opposition to this recommendation was	The completion of Phase One and the	Commitment and a proposed budget for the
management strategy that is to	received	development of the framework for Phase	next phase of the City's Groundwater
develop a framework in which to		Two of the Groundwater Management	Strategy is being sought
identify, prioritize, and complete		Strategy recommended as part of the OP and	This is a process recommendation that lies
groundwater management; ensuring		IMP review	outside of the Official Plan.
a sustainable approach to			
development and growth. Once draft			
development applications are			See Staff Preliminary Proposals
approved, they should be followed			Section 5.3 Rural Servicing Groundwater
up to ensure they meet any changes.			Resources

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
74. The City could use computer software to model Ottawa's aquifers and these models may be used to analyse the current state of groundwater quality and quantity; identify areas of vulnerability; and may be used to predict future cumulative impacts of all stresses on the aquifers and assess the effect of development proposals. Due to the costs associated with this option, modelling should be developed over time beginning with the aquifers under the greatest development pressures.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Preparing a detailed model of each aquifer re not a high priority of the Groundwater Management Strategy but may be one of the requirements for the completion of Village Community Design Plans, Well-head protection areas and some Sub-watershed Studies. The Source Water Protection Group is developing Aquifer Vulnerability mapping and is doing more detailed assessment of wellhead protection areas for communal wells. The City is also undertaking watershed characterisation work to support future watershed and sub-watershed studies.	Opportunities for computer modelling will add to a number of initiatives currently underway. The outcome of some of the work being undertaken may result in future changes to the Official Plan. No current changes to the Official Plan in this regard are proposed.
75. The City could protect special groundwater areas and features (e.g. wetlands, recharge areas, water balance, wellhead areas) through policy, by-laws, zoning, acquisition and other appropriate mechanisms to ensure sustainability of groundwater resources and landowner compensation where necessary.	Two approaches to protection of source water areas. Protect areas from development, which may include compensation if development is prohibited. And do not permit development that is likely to cause problems and pollute.	Agree The OP already contains a logical suite of protection methods for groundwater and will follow the Provincial lead on Source Water protection. A Source Water Protection Plan must be completed by 2013. Sub watershed studies and lands identified as part of the City's Natural Heritage System may identify and include sensitive recharge areas that subsequently require protection through land use policy. Many are already in environmental designations Wellhead protection zones are identified in the OP for existing municipal wells.	Designations and policies are already included in the plan to address this recommendation. Additional policies are proposed in Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Heritage System In addition the Source Water Protection Plan will be completed in 2013 and may require changes to the Official Plan.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
76. To protect both existing owners and developers, the City could undertake pre-construction testing of neighbouring wells, recording of the information and then post-construction testing, to safeguard against activities known to cause well degradation such as blasting, stormwater ponds and adjoining urban development.	Need to ensure that owners are monitoring water quality regularly. Concern that if information is made public on water quality this will impact land value. Possibly some people would be willing to allow water results to be used as a part of overall aquifer monitoring system - possibly for free water testing.	Agree The City's current requirements for pre and post construction testing will be enhanced to monitor impact on groundwater sources for adjacent development. City to explore enforcement mechanisms for remediation where impacts occur.	Currently Implemented This usually addressed through conditions of Development No change to the Official Plan is required.
77. The City could establish "protection" levels for special groundwater features based on clear criteria.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	See 75 above	Designations and policies are already included in the plan to address this recommendation. Additional policies are proposed in Section 6.3 Ottawa's Natural Heritage System In addition the Source Water Protection Plan will be completed in 2013 and may require changes to the Official Plan.
78. Municipal subdivision agreements could include a clause stating that lawn irrigation systems or open looped groundwater heat pumps are not permitted.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree A standard condition is added to all plans of subdivision, where private services are involved, that prohibits in ground heat pumps unless the hydrogeological study for the development addresses this matter. Where a hydrogeological study identifies special requirements such as lawn irrigation they will also be included in the conditions of approval.	This is an approval process already implemented by the City No change to the Official Plan is required.
79. The City could reiterate its commitment to enforce Provincial requirements and guidelines at the	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This is a development related matter that is Provincial jurisdiction. Fro practical	In Progress These requirements will be restated in the proposed Hydrogeological Guidelines. See

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
local level for both water quantity and quality.		reasons The City does not repeat other legislation or guidelines that are subject to change in the Official Plan. However, the City intends to reflect Provincial Drinking Water Objectives in the proposed City guidelines titled "Technical Requirements for Hydrogeology and Terrain Analysis Studies for Privately Serviced Developments"	Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.3 Rural Servicing: Groundwater Resources
80. On-site inspection by City staff and engineers should be required before any consideration is given to an application for re-zoning or change in land use designation. This may require additional staff resources.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This is a development related matter that constitutes best practice and is encouraged but may not be practical in every situation.	Currently Implemented as best practice This is a process recommendation and no change to the Official Plan is required in order to ensure that where appropriate sites will be inspected.
81. Provincial standards for wells (Regulation 903) and septic system installation (Ontario Building Code) and inspection of wells should be fully implemented at the time of installation to ensure that construction meets these standards. Where hydrogeological studies, undertaken at the time of development, recommend higher standards of construction these standards should take precedence and be enforced.	City should ensure well construction as recommended by the hydrogeological analysis and that meets a minimum identified standard.	Agree The province currently requires well driller licensing and the City requires a signed affidavit that the well is drilled in accordance with the conditions of approval.	Currently Implemented This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan and no change to the Official Plan is required to continue this process.

Monitoring Groundwater (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
82. The City could monitor water quality and quantity and privately owned wells and aquifers on an ongoing basis; collect data from aforementioned sources and maintain a database of monitoring records and make the results publicly accessible.	Need to ensure that owners are monitoring water quality regularly. Concern that if information is made public on water quality this will impact land value. Possibly some people would be willing to allow water results to be used as a part of overall aquifer monitoring system - possibly for free water testing.	Agree Staff has proposed that a dedicated monitoring well will be required as part of each phase of a plan of subdivision and information from this will be used to maintain database. However this may not be the most efficient method to obtain the data required and the current recommendation is being re-evaluated.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed Proposal to require a monitoring well as a condition of every rural subdivision. See the Table in OP document 2 on line 4.4.2.1 Page 20
83. The City could develop mechanisms for the testing/monitoring of wells installed in all new and existing rural housing developments, at golf courses, around quarry sites, etc. to provide an on-going, accurate data source.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree See 82 above.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed Proposal to require a monitoring well as a condition of every rural subdivision. See the Table in OP document 2 on line 4.4.2.1 Page 20.
84. Developers could turn over test wells to the City to be used for ongoing monitoring. The City would require access to the wells for monitoring.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree See 82 above.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed Proposal to require a monitoring well as a condition of every rural subdivision. See the Table in OP document 2 on line 4.4.2.1 Page 20.
85. The City could develop and adopt aesthetic standards for groundwater quantity and water quality for all private wells and develop clear municipal standards for treatment systems including treatment limits for aesthetic parameters that comply	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The City restates its commitment to comply with Provincial guidelines for aesthetic water quality parameters. These requirements will be restated in the proposed Hydrogeological Guidelines	In Progress See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.3 Rural Servicing: Groundwater Resources

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
with Provincial guidelines.			

Corrective Measures (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
86. Assign the responsibility to receive and assess complaints, forward the issue to the most appropriate authority for investigation, track progress of the issue and report its resolution to one office.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree That a policy co-ordinator and contact is required. See 70 above	In Progress This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
87. The Province could require well and septic system inspections as part of the land transfer process, including a full water quality report.	Why should province do this? Why would this not be a best practice for anyone acquires a property with private services?	Agree in part This is not a City responsibility This constitutes best practice for homebuyers and real-estate agents. Homebuyers should request this as a matter of course when purchasing a rural property.	Not a City responsibility No change to the Official Plan is required.
88. The City could set standards for well and septic system maintenance and inspection, including a cleansing schedule based on sludge accumulation for septic tanks.	Need to ensure minimum standards of Septic maintenance and that property owners are managing sewage systems appropriately. Concern about cost and bureaucratic red tape. Keep it simple	Agree in part The City's preferred approach is to provide resources to the public on best practices for the operation and maintenance of wells and septic systems. Resources for rural homeowners (or prospective homeowners) about well and septic issues are available on the Rural Connections website at ottawa.ca/rural.	In Progress This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required. See polices in the Infrastructure Master Plan Review Section 2.1.5 pages 13 & 14
89. The City could permit septic system service companies to empty into the sewer system (at a reduced rate).	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree There does not seem to be any basis for this recommendation in the report. As a mechanism of disposal it is not technically desirable to discharge this material into the	This is a sewerage system operational matter that is not supported for technical operational reasons. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
		pipe system. Instead, it is trucked to the	
		Pickard Centre. Any reduction in the cost of	
		disposal at the Pickard Centre must be	
		addressed on a cost for service basis.	

Public Education (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
90. Review existing communications materials and procedures, developing new methods where required.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree The Review and update should be ongoing The Rural Affairs office uses many ways to communicate to rural residents, including regular updates by email to registered users, through the Rural Connections website, faceto-face presentations at community association meetings, community newsletters, and through advertisements and authored columns is rural newspapers.	In Progress This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
91. Municipal notification of a development proposal could be sent to individuals, businesses, and communities who share aquifers and related natural features, inviting them to participate in the consultation/review process.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Individual notification on a aquifer basis will most likely not be possible but notification to adjacent owners, registered Community Associations, onsite signage and the online development tracking will provide a residents in the area with adequate notification of future development proposals.	Being considered as part of the Planning Transit and Environment Departmental procedures review. This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
92. Information about the character of the groundwater, aquifers, and recharge areas could be integrated into Community Design Plans,	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Proposed change to OP policy for Community Design Plans Section 2.5.6. Servicing studies and groundwater	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed Proposal to require polices for CDPs. See the Table in OP Document 2 on the line for Figure 2.5.6 Structure of Community Design

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
including information on how development changes will conserve and enhance groundwater.		assessments to be component of the program for the development of a CDP for a Village or other planning area.	Plans Page 11-12
93. The City could provide a well advertised, on-call educational and mediation program for local groundwater conditions.	This is suggesting that easily accessible educational information be provided to the public that answers questions and provides basic understanding threats and impacts private services have on groundwater and the environment. This could include basic responsibilities liabilities of the homeowner.	Agree The City will revisit the currency of information on the web and continue to work with Conservation authorities to enhance the information that is available to the public and real estate industry.	Some information is already accessible from the City Web site as follows http://www.ottawa.ca/city_services/water/wells/6_en.shtml This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
94. Information on homeowners responsibilities for water and sewage and who to contact in the City if issues arise, could be sent out with the municipal tax bill to save mailing costs and ensure they receive attention.	Recommends this as a low cost method to disseminate information	Agree That a policy co-ordinator and contact is required. See 70 above. Providing such information to rural property owners was a topic of discussion at Rural Summit II. One recommendation of the Summit (#70 of 122) was as follows: City could develop an information package for new rural residents. Included would be: letter of welcome; who to call list; and well and septic information. As part of the Rural Summit II work plan, various distribution methods for such an information package will be considered.	In Progress This is a process recommendation and lies outside of the Official Plan. No change to the Official Plan is required.
95. Realtors to new homeowners could supply information packages during the land sale transaction.	Agree This could be a low cost method to disseminate information.	Agree But this is not a City responsibility City Web based information is available to	This is not a City responsibility. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
		Real-estate agents and homebuyers. Other agencies (i.e. Conservation Authorities) also provide information. This would occur if Homebuyers required this service from local real estate agents.	
		The following recommendation was made at Rural Summit II (#70 of 122): City could develop an information package for new rural residents. Included would be: letter of welcome; who to call list; and well and septic information.	
		Realtors will be considered as a method of distribution this information.	

Human, Material and Financial Resources (Groundwater)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
96. The City should increase the budget	One respondent agreed but the City and	Agree	This will be implemented through City
assigned to Groundwater resources	public need to understand what can be	Staff will cost the implementation of	budgets and the update of the Development
to address the issues outlined in this	known about groundwater and what will	recommendations and determine the budget	Charges By-law
paper to ensure they are addressed in	remain unknown. Perfect information should	submissions and other mechanisms to	
the current official plan review.	not be expected.	finance additional costs to the City associated with these Groundwater recommendations, including levies, such as Development Charges for new development.	No change to the Official Plan is required
97. The City should ensure that it has the	No additional input in support or in	Agree	This will be implemented through City
ability to implement the policies of	opposition to this recommendation was	The city should only include policies in the	Development approval, and the City's work
the Official Plan related to	received	Official Plan that it has the capacity	program budgeting processes.
groundwater and the Groundwater		implement through hits powers under the	No change to the Official Plan is required.
Management Strategy in a timely		Planning Act and through public works.	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Preliminary Proposals
manner.			

Process Working Group Recommendations

3.1.1 City of Ottawa Website Information and Design (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
98. Effective 'Ward Based' information organization and timely presentation	The City Website has already undergone a significant improvement in the way it provides access to information. Generally supportive of concept but divided on whether it should be Ward or	Agree in part The City has implemented online access to Development Tracking. This is searchable on a Ward basis. This provides community access to application details and to developers'	The City will investigate feasibility of providing other information on a Ward basis as part of the corporate review of the City Website. This is not implemented through the City
	topic based. Many felt that Ward based information could be co-ordinated by Councillors but built around a standard format. There is a need to demonstrate cost effectiveness and usefulness of this recommendation.	The City already provides a lot of information on a Ward basis. Providing all information on a Ward basis would require a substantial rebuild of the Website and the way information is	Official Plan Review of the web site is underway and on going
		recorded and updated in the City. The City will investigate feasibility of providing other information on a Ward basis as part of the corporate review of the City Website.	
		This was one of the proposals reviewed at Rural Summit II and will be considered as part of the work plan, however this item was on the lower end of the prioritization (#96 of 120).	
		The Rural Connections portal on the City website (ottawa.ca/rural) provides targeted information for the residents	

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
		of the four rural Ottawa wards. As well, links are provided to each rural councillor's ward website (where they exist).	
99. Implement Ward E-Flyers by councillor/Ward, by department topics (NOTE: not councillor managed, should be corporately or horizontally managed)	Good idea but dependent on the success of recommendation 98. Concern about providing email and volume of incoming messages. Some suggested better communication through newspaper. Some questioned why the reluctance to permit management by the Councillor.	Agree in part See 98 above Regular Ward based E-Flyers or newsletters require a lot of resources to reliably produce. E-flyers are used on a project-by-project basis to keep people informed (e.g. OP review, subwatershed studies etc.) The Rural Affairs Office currently maintains an "E-Flyer distribution list receive notification of important events, approximately twice a month. This list, now over 900 contacts, provides information on consultations, projects, events, news, grants etc. specifically for rural Ottawa. On occasion, these messages will be targeted to resident of specific wards, regions or villages when the information would only be applicable to a certain area of rural Ottawa. Anyone wishing to register for the Rural Affairs Office mailing list can send a request to ruralaffairs@ottawa.ca.	Implemented for specific projects. This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
100. Implement communication plan (what's important this week, this month, this year, next year)	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	The City undertakes high-level corporate communications, Priority Planning and project and program specific communications planning. This recommendation may only be partially feasible. Approved work plans are already available on line as part of the Budget online Real time development tracking was implemented in May 08. "Monthly Highlights" are already provided on the City Website. These are usually city-wide activities, information and events Information for ongoing public consultation is provided on the website.	Implemented through other mechanisms This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
101. Enhance weekly Citizen notices to stand out and be informative to readers	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree Currently the City's Add Page is placed in the paper on the same day every week and in the same part of the paper. Adding more information to newspaper advertising increases ad size and is not considered cost effective. Ottawa.ca is the best location to provide additional information and ads should direct the public to use this resource to find more detailed information.	This is not implemented through the City Official Plan Improved notification is provide through online development tracking, email and consultation information on the web

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
102. Lengthen process for communicating city information	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Ability to lengthen consultation linked to process. Development applications are subject to legislated timelines. However, these are already extended for large or controversial development proposals. For City initiated studies consultation is often lengthened where necessary since there is usually no associated legislated process or appeal mechanism Reviewing times for Council agendas can be done as part of the mid-term Governance review. The pilot White Paper approach for major policy initiatives is intended to provide citizens and councillors with the opportunity to have input on a policy before it is developed.	This is not implemented through the City Official Plan but will be considered as part of the mid-term Governance review.
103. Ensure final City documents say Final and not Draft and that Final is widely published	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree	This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
104. Ensure errors are corrected in City documents and through effective version history and control release a corrected version. (ineffective to search for 2 documents - the report and the minutes to find out if the minutes state that the report was actually incorrect(Could use	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Erratum can and are added to completed reports and generally errors are corrected in web versions if they are known in advance of Council. In major documents, like the budget, replacement pages are issued and these are formally received at Council and posted on the	Current process is considered to address this in a satisfactory manner. This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
addendum correction sheets on documents e.g. like Patents)		Website Where amendments have been made on the floor of Council to correct errors, these are noted in the minutes. Erratum can and are added to completed reports prepared by consultants	
105. PDF all city documents such as by- laws, reports, upcoming community meetings, AG Reports, Performance Reports, etc.	Generally agree but not considered a priority. Accessibility to City documents already considered good. Access to developer reports desired and is a higher priority.	Agree in part Managing the size of Ottawa.ca is an issue and the audience needs to be considered when making these decisions. PDF files cause some problems in terms of W3C compatibility for those citizens with visual impairments, which is why the City's electronic documents are currently provided in HTML. Currently the OP, new Zoning B-law and other municipal by-laws are available online. While the objective is supported the amount of information provided in PDF format and distributed by the Web will continue to be managed The Online development-tracking feature being introduced necessitates developers providing electronic copies of supporting studies in PDF format. These will be accessible online.	This is being implemented in accordance with the City's Accessibility Policies. This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment (synopsis)	Response /Action	Staff Proposals
106. Address silos of information	No additional input in support or in	Agree	In Progress
	opposition to this recommendation was	Addressed through ongoing review of	This is not implemented through the City
	received	City processes and responsibilities	Official Plan.
107. Track and analyze website 'hits' to	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Currently Implemented
make responses more intuitive and	opposition to this recommendation was	Communications currently does this and	This is not implemented through the City
focused	received	addresses any issues in a timely fashion.	Official Plan
		The Website has been revamped and	
		web content is being reviewed.	

3.1.2 OP updates - Real Estate Organisations and New Home Buyers (Process)

o.n.e or apaatoo Roar Estate organisatione and New France Bayers (1700000)			
Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
108. Implement a communication vehicle for Real Estate organizations and the new home owner groups to provide Official Plan (OP) and sub-division plan information	Online plans considered an advantage but most people believe that information is already available for estate agents and owners. Most issues may be addressed by recommendation 98	Agree in part Make Real Estate Board aware of what information is already available at the City. Incorporate an elective to the Planning Primer, the use of the City's Website tools such as e-maps, the Official Plan, the new Zoning By-law and other currently available online information.	In part this is addressed through the Planning Primer Course and other information is provided and easily accessible on the web. This is not implemented by the Official Plan
109. Implement a process to enhance Seller Property Information Sheets (SPIS) to include a place for this type of information	One respondent felt that that interested groups could create a buyer beware "check list" and that real-estate industry should be more proactive.	Agree But this is not the City's responsibility to update or enhance these information sheets. The City, when requested, does provide Compliance Zoning Reports at the time of property purchase. These reports provide zoning and building compliance information. There is a fee for these reports and the application form is accessible on the City's Website.	This is not a City responsibility This is not implemented by the Official Plan

3.1.3 Effective Bilingualism Dissemination of City Information (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
110. Implement a truly bilingual website	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	Currently implemented
design	opposition to this recommendation was	The current Bilingualism policy is on the	
	received	city Website	This is not implemented through the City
		http://www.ottawa.ca/city_hall/french_se	Official Plan
		rvices/bilingualismpolicy_en.html	
		Exceptions are sometimes granted for	
		large technical documents and some	
		historical documents that have not been	
		translated. The Secretariat Services	
		Branch (French Language Services	
		Division) makes these decisions on a	
		needs basis.	
111 Contact the Factor of the French	N 112 1 i	A constitution	C mod I I alamanda I
111. Create either English or French	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	Currently Implemented This is not implemented through the City
documents to shorten the length of documents that must be read and	opposition to this recommendation was received	The City will continue to produce public documents in both official languages in a	This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
photocopied.	received	manner that is both useful and cost	Official Fiall
photocopica.		effective.	

3.2.1 Funding Application Timelines (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
112. Implement 3-6 month lead time to	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	Currently Implemented
enable groups to investigate and plan	opposition to this recommendation was	The city is interested in providing	
for responding to funding	received	information and assistance to groups	This is not implemented through the City
opportunities		wishing to access funding opportunities.	Official Plan
		Non-renewable Community Project	
		Funding is dependent upon annual City	
		Budget approval, which dictates the launch	
		schedule. However, the funding program is	
		usually launched in the spring of each year.	
		Six weeks are allocated for applications,	
		and support from Community Funding is	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
Accommendation	1 ubit Comment	available to applicants through information sessions and one-on-one meetings The Cultural Funding Program deadlines are posted on the Website in October of each year, allowing a 2- 3-month timeline for applications, depending upon the program. These deadlines are consistent from year-to-year, allowing organizations to plan ahead. Many other Branches of the City provide or administer funding such as: Economic and Environmental Sustainability, Children's Services, Crime Prevention Ottawa, Housing Branch, Employment and Financial Assistance Branch, By-law Services, Parks and Recreation Branch, Cultural Funding, Community Funding, Surface Operations, and Rural Affairs Office etc.	Stati 11 upusais
		See the City Website for a complete list of funding programs. http://ottawa.ca/residents/funding/index_en.html The Rural Affairs Office currently maintains an "E-Flyer distribution list of	
		people who receive periodic information on topics such as grants available in rural Ottawa. Anyone wishing to register for the Rural	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		Affairs Office mailing list can send a request to ruralaffairs@ottawa.ca . As well, Rural Connections maintains a list of funding opportunities for rural Ottawa on the City website at ottawa.ca/rural.	
113. Provide the communities with a heads up on upcoming incentives (funding programs)	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Community Funding webpage includes information about Renewable and Non-Renewable Community Project Funding and advises that Non-Renewable Community Project Funding program is usually launched in spring each year (providing Council has approved that portion of CF's budget). The Cultural Funding Program deadlines are posted on the Website in October of each year, allowing a 2-3 month application timeline for applicants, depending on the program. These deadlines are consistent from year to year, allowing organizations to plan ahead. The Rural Affairs Office currently maintains an 'E-Flyer' distribution list of people who receive periodic information on topics such as grants available in rural Ottawa. Contacts for all known rural Community Associations are on this list. Any group wishing to register for the Rural Affairs Office mailing list can send a request to ruralaffairs@ottawa.ca.	Currently Implemented This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		As well, Rural Connections maintains a list of funding opportunities for rural Ottawa on the City website at ottawa.ca/rural.	

3.2.2 Standardised Format, Easily Accessible Petition Form and Process (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
114. Define, document, implement, and post a formal standardized petition form and petition process including instructions for use	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree This is an issue that the City Clerk's Department has already identified and this is underway as part of the mid-term Governance review.	Part of the mid-term Governance review This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
115. Define and document how the information the petition is addressing will be verified	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Same as 114	Part of the mid-term Governance review This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
116. Include in the petition process requirements that the petition author must provide the authoritative source for the information and that the petition author must provide their name, address and phone	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Same as 114	Part of the mid-term Governance review This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
117. Define and document the minimum posting locations and timeframes for petitions	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Same as 114	Part of the mid-term Governance review This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
118. Define that the petition respondents and supporters must provide their information and acknowledge that the petition is a public document subject to scrutiny by other members of the public	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Same as 114	Part of the mid-term Governance review This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
119. Define and document the petition	No additional input in support or in	Same as 114	Part of the mid-term Governance review
scrutiny process	opposition to this recommendation was received		This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

3.2.3 Enabling Legislation (Process)

3.2.3 Enability Legislation (Process			
Recommendation	Public Comment	Response/ Action	Staff Proposals
120. Establish a mechanism to communicate local concerns regarding Provincial legislation back to the Provincial government	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Where Council supports the public concerns with Provincial legislation the council's position will be forwarded to the appropriate Ministry. The public also has direct recourse to the local MPP for all complaints and concerns related to provincial legislation.	Process already established This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
121. Establish an effective mechanism to bring issues forward from community associations to the OMB recognizing that community associations and individuals do not have the same financial resources to draw from as developers.	Input from the community on this matter suggests that it is not a big issue	Agree in part City is scheduled to provide information to Community Groups on making submissions to and presenting evidence at the OMB. The Planning Primer Course - Elective I to be held in September 2008 is on the OMB. This course is offered to the public, community and interest groups who have already completed Primer 1 and 2. Online information about the appeal process and guides on how to appeal and present evidence, can be obtained from the OMB web site http://www.omb.gov.on.ca/.%5CAbout%5COMB Guide.html	Process already established Current Planning Primer courses provide community representatives with introductory training on the OMB This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Response/ Action	Staff Proposals
		Caseworkers at the OMB provide	
		procedural advice to groups wishing to	
		appeal	

3.2.4 Timelines for Public to Obtain, Read and Provide Comments (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
122. Reports should not be made 'final' until the public has had a minimum of 30 days to obtain, review, disseminate and respond to reports.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree Staff reports are made available to the Councillors and public at the same time and represent the staff position on an issue. The preparation of report usually includes public consultation in some form as part of the staff analysis. Comments on the presentation of community input are addressed in 3.4.3 below The public has the opportunity to address Committees and Council in regard to any report and can identify any information that has not been addressed and request deferral of a decision until matter is addressed.	Current process provides opportunities for public input This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
123. Reports should be updated to include the public's comments and input	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Staff reports are completed some time in advance of the Committee and Council meetings. It is not possible to update them to include information that is received once they have been signed off. However, staff can include information on late arriving information in the presentation and the public can make representation directly to Committee in regard to these submissions.	Current process provides opportunities for public input This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
124. City should publish their work program categorized by, for example, the week, this month, this year, next 5 years. This would enable the public not only to follow initiatives closely and anticipate and participate in report creation but also to show that their input is valued and included	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part This is already done. Departmental work programs are approved by Council annually and are available on-line. Planning matters related to development applications are not predictable. Online Development Tracking will provide the status of applications that have been received declared complete and community notification has been given. General information on processes and timing already exists on the City Website. Big studies typically have a consultation plan and project timeline identified in "Public Consultation" on the City's Website. http://www.ottawa.ca/public_consult/index_en.shtml Information on major road works and street closures can be found on the Website http://www.ottawa.ca/cgi-bin/trafficreport/report_search.pl?lang=en	Already publicised at the time of the budget This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

3.2.5 Recognizable Feedback for Resident's Work and Input (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Response/ Action	Staff Proposals
125. Ensure recognition for residents'	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Process and format to recognise public
input is incorporated into the process	opposition to this recommendation was	City will continue to use best efforts to	input already exists
	received	represent public comments in reports and	
		recommendations. See 3.4.3 below	This is not implemented through the City
			Official Plan

126. Honour agreements agreed upon during the process	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree	This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

3.2.6 Equal Access to Development Information (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
127. All information should be available	All respondents supported this and	Agree	Currently Implemented
on the City's Website about	agreed this was possible using the	See 98 above	This is not implemented through the City
processes status of where	development tracking system. Some	Online development tracking has been	Official Plan
applications etc. are in the	believed that the developers should do	implemented	
development process stream	this.		

3.2.7 Developer's Use of City Logo (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Response/ Action	Staff Proposals
128. Define, document and publish a Branding Policy	All Yes	Agree The City of Ottawa's symbols and its application Guidelines are the property of the City of Ottawa. Where the City is a partner in a program the use of the City logo is permitted.	Currently Implemented It is not implemented through the City Official Plan
		Others may use Ottawa symbols but only when written permission is obtained from the City of Ottawa. All applications must include a graphic rendering of the intended use and a description of the proposed use.	
		Non-profit, charitable, community-based groups may use the new City of Ottawa wordmark and slogan solely for identification purposes and subject to	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Response/ Action	Staff Proposals
		entering into a five-year licensing agreement, approved by resolution of Council.	
129. Ensure that individuals companies organizations and interest groups receive information on the City's Branding Policy and that it is adhered to	There are existing mechanisms that the City can use to protect it logo	Agree The City's "Visual Identity Elements - Rules of Usage" are available on the City Website http://ottawa.ca/city_hall/visual_id/policy_e_n.html	Currently Implemented It is not implemented through the City Official Plan

3.2.8 Community Design Plan Process (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
130. A Rural Affairs Office representative	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Currently Implemented
should actively participate in the	opposition to this recommendation was	Staff of the Rural Affairs office continues to	It is not implemented through the City
rural community design process	received	be available as liaison for projects in rural	Official Plan
		Ottawa and to be involved in all future rural	
		CDPs.	
		Planning staff will keep staff of the Rural	
		Affairs Office up to date on all community	
		planning projects in rural Ottawa	
		The Decret Accion Occion decretation 4	
		The Rural Affairs Office does participate	
		in community design process and other	
		rural planning initiatives.	
		The Rural Connections website	
		(ottawa.ca/rural) is also updated with	
		project information as it becomes	
121 City planning staff agets of 11. 11	No additional innert in accordant on in	available.	Commental Invalorement of
131. City planning staff contacts should	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	Currently Implemented This is not implemented through the City
be consistent and staff should have	opposition to this recommendation was	It is the Planning Branch's ongoing policy	This is not implemented through the City
adequate experience and	received	to maintain consistent and qualified staffing	Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
understanding of and working with rural issues and community design plans		on all planning policy and development review projects. Development Information Officers (DIOs) are available to provide information tot he public on development applications and general planning issues. DIOs have available copies of all development applications that are ongoing and subject to public consultation. As well they can provide information on the City's Official Plan and Zoning by-law.	
132. Fully engage rural residents and rural community leaders in order to build consensus in creating a community design plan	General Agreement	Agree The Planning Branch has a Community Consultation Specialist on staff and who is involved in the design of the consultation programs for all new Community Design Plans. This position has proved effective in the recently completed CDPs for the Villages of Carp and Constance Bay.	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.5 Expansion of Urban and Village Boundaries and Section 5.1 Development in Villages.

3.2.9 Mechanisms to Correct City Documents (Process)

-			
Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
133. Adopt and implement a document	Agree the City should correct errors in	Agree	In progress
management process or version	information that is made public	Avoiding confusion over which version of a	This is not implemented through the City
control and version history process		document is current is important. This is	Official Plan
for all City documents, which would		being reviewed.	
clearly articulate to readers the			
version of the report that was		It is noted that most consultant studies	
presented to committee or council.		submitted to the City are clearly identified	
The version number would be		as draft or final. If there as more than one	
incremented to include and record in		draft version these are usually dated or	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
the Version History Table the updates or corrections to the report, the date, the author and the meeting that caused a new version to be released and ultimately filed as the official and final version		identified as a revised version.	
134. Disseminate this process via the City's website	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Provided the relevant versions are easily identifiable and available publicising the process on the web is a low priority.	In progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
version control and version history, implement a better document management process to enable residents to locate reports on-line in a self serve manner without have to call the City to find out the date of the report, the date of the meetings when report was presented and the date the report was approved	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Improving accessibility to City reports on the web is desirable.	In Progress as part of the corporate review of the City Website

3.3.1 Response Time to the Public (Process)

•	,		
Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
136. Implement a standard level of response time corporately	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	This is still being examined Some Departments have individual protocols for responding to public enquires particularly those working directly with the public.	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
137. Publish the standard via communication of the corporate standards to residents	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Partially implemented Some Quarterly statistics are posted on the City Web site http://ottawa.ca/city_hall/ottawa_performance/quarterly_performance/2008/q1/psd_en.h	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

l to	tml	
Li Li	UIII	

3.3.2 Tracking Appropriate Performance Metrics on Key Products and Services (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
138. Expand and enhance current	No additional input in support or in	Partially implemented Some Quarterly	This is an ongoing part of the City's review
performance metrics framework to	opposition to this recommendation was	statistics are posted on the City Web site	of its service delivery.
include meaningful line items	received	http://ottawa.ca/city_hall/ottawa_performan	
		ce/quarterly performance/2008/q1/psd_en.h	This is not implemented through the City
		<u>tml</u>	Official Plan
139. Publish metrics and service level	No additional input in support or in	See 138	See 138
tracking system results	opposition to this recommendation was		
	received		
140. Work with rural residents to identify	No additional input in support or in	See 138	See 138
gaps and refine measurements	opposition to this recommendation was		
	received		

3.3.3 311 Call Centre Response Times and Statistics and IVR System (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
141. Examine currently system	No additional input in support or in	Agree	This is being implemented.
capabilities	opposition to this recommendation was	Call Centre response times are monitored	
	received	daily and adjustments made to improve	This is not implemented through the City
		/reduce wait times.	Official Plan
142. Define and validate new IVR requirements and implement enhancements Note: IVR stands for Interactive Voice Recognition System	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Ongoing improvement of this system is desirable	In Progress
143. Publish current and future call	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Currently Implemented
centre statistics	opposition to this recommendation was	Call Centre quarterly statistics are currently	
	received	published on the City Website. Current	This is not implemented through the City
		statistics can be found at the following link	Official Plan
		http://ottawa.ca/city_hall/ottawa_performan	

	ce/quarterly_performance/2008/q1/psd_en.h	
	tml	

3.3.4 City Roads Maintenance & Inspection Based on Budget (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
144. Instate or re-instate regular roads and operations inspections	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Surface Operations (SOPS) is currently reviewing the Road Patrol function with a view to have a consistent level-of-service over the City's entire Class 1 (Transitway/Hwy 174) and Class 2 (urban/suburban/rural arterials) road network for summer 2008.	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
145. Ensure that inspections and maintenance meet Provincial legislation	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Ontario Regulation 239/02 - Minimum Maintenance Standards are guidelines for use by municipalities but they are not mandatory. In addition, in 2003 Council did not approve the funds necessary for Surface Operations to enhance the then- current road patrol standard to the recommended Ontario Minimum Maintenance Standards. Nonetheless, on a case-by-case basis, Surface Operations is utilizing a standard business case approach to investigate, support, and implement BMP's throughout our operations.	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan
146. Implement an 'area' based model for maintenance and operations versus product or service based model. (i.e. have a 'generalist' roads crew Staff Proposals for an area versus skills	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part As stated in 145, Surface Operations is utilizing a standard business case approach to investigate, support, and implement BMP's throughout our operations. The	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
sets specific to a service to be		current vehicle driving the review of the	
delivered – e.g. a single resource		various business cases is the	
who can fill pot holes fix signs and		implementation of Operations Planning,	
replace light bulbs.)		which is a project, designed to provide tools	
		and operating procedures to better manage	
		operations.	

3.4.1 Public Notification Process (Process)

5.4.11 ubile Nouncation 1 rocess (1 rocess)				
Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals	
147. Implement meetings with local residents before submitting application	Generally agree but some doubts as to how this can be implemented.	Agree in part The planning Act does not permit the City to require developers to pre-consult with the Community. However, staff can, at the time that staff pre-consultation occurs, encourage developers to meet with the community before lodging their application.	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan	
148. Staff working on these developments should have rural experience	Yes agree but opinion differed between rural experience and experience in a specific area.	Agree It is the Planning Branch's ongoing policy to maintain consistent and appropriately qualified staff on all planning policy and development review projects. City has also created Rural Affairs Office, which ensures consistent liaison on rural planning and consultation matters. The Rural Affairs office receives notice of all submitted development applications made in rural Ottawa and when appropriate, Rural Affairs Office staff will provide comments and/or meet with Planning staff and/or the applicant to discuss the process.	Currently implemented This is not implemented through the City Official Plan	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
149. Rural Office should function as liaison	Agree but not necessarily in every case.	Agree The Rural Affairs Office ensures consistent liaison on rural planning and consultation matters.	Implemented This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.
		The Rural Affairs office receives notice of all submitted development applications made in rural Ottawa.	
		As well, the Rural Affairs Office will often meet and discuss possible applications with rural landowners prior to submission.	
		When appropriate, Rural Affairs Office staff will provide comments and/or meet with Planning staff and the applicant to discuss during the process.	
150. A multi-tier system where large developments should take longer than 45 days.	Responses divided. Issue more one of adequate consultation and possibly the bigger the project the more consultation that is required.	Agree in part Large developments do generally take longer and involve more public consultation. Larger developments include mandatory public consultation, which often includes a community meeting. As well, sufficient time is taken to resolve any issues, which are identified in the project.	Implemented This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.

3.4.2 Staff Relationship with Developers (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
151. City staff review developer process	Agree an open process is needed but	Agree	In Progress
at formal meetings and develop a	more focused on the provision of	Action is being taken in terms of	
strategy allowing equal access and	information and more serious	information availability and review of	No change to the City Official Plan is

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
opportunities.	consideration of public input.	feedback. The online Development Tracking system is already operational and provides residents with full access to development reports and data	required
152. Allow residents to have access to documents for same time period as developer	All agree biggest concern is access to information	Agree Already in process with the online Development Tracking System See 98 above	Implemented No change to the Official Plan is appropriate or necessary
153. Develop a branding policy	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree Already exists See 128 & 129 above	Implemented This policy already exists see 128 & 129 above. No change to the Official Plan is appropriate or necessary.

3.4.3 Reflect Public Input into the Development Review Process (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
154. Record and publish who and what groups have been consulted	All yes. Some believe this is already done.	Agree in part In some cases privacy is an issue. However, Staff reports can state who has been consulted and still maintain individual privacy. Most reports currently do this.	Implemented by Planning Branch This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.
155. Define, document and post a formal comments traceability matrix process, including forms, templates and instructions for use	Yes formally recording input increases credibility but can be cumbersome and costly.	Agree in part Reports can include a table containing comments, responses and subsequent actions. Currently, comments provided are listed and/or summarized in a separate	Implemented by Planning Branch in staff reports This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		attachment at the end of the report. When there are only a small number of comments this table may not be necessary and the comments will be discussed in the main body of the report.	
156. Educate public on the City's process for public consultation	Yes and impact of consultation possibly as a guide provided on the web.	Agree The steps for public consultation associated with the development review process are already on the City's Website http://www.ottawa.ca/residents/planning/de v_review_process/approvals/index_en.html #P27_3163 For large City projects or studies the consultation program is normally identified on the City's website at the beginning of the project. The City also hold a Planning Primer Course, which is open to the public, that explains the al of the processes associated with municipal planning and development review.	Implemented No change to the Official Plan is appropriate or necessary
157. Develop a tracking system, which could include e-mails to keep residents informed of their input into the process	Response less than positive with concerns regarding volume of information and the potential that this will not be cost effective.	Agree City provides notification of all meetings and decisions to those people who have requested to be notified. The Planning Act also provides that these people will receive notice of meetings and the Council decision where they ask to be notified. For large projects the City uses an E flyer to update people who have registered and requested email notification. Planning staff dealing	Implemented No change to the Official Plan is appropriate or necessary

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		with smaller projects also utilise email to	
		notify people who have requested	
		notification and updates.	

3.4.4 Global Overview of Planning (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
158. More global consideration of development applications rather than considering each individually in a vacuum.	Agreement. One respondent	Agree. Polices related to assessment of the cumulative impact of development are integral to the City's Growth Management Plans. The new Official Plan and Consolidation of the City's Zoning by-law help to achieve this goal.	No change to the City Official Plan is required
159. Set limits on developments in regions where resources could be restrictive (e.g. water, traffic, schools etc.)	Divided some believe limits once set should be enforced and compensation provided and others believed that the market should determine	Agree Provincial Policy and Official Plan already establishes these areas. Current OP review is examining the consistency between the City's OP and the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS). The Groundwater Management strategy and Subwatershed studies may identify sensitive groundwater recharge areas and will recommend protection measure s that will be incorporated into the Official Plan.	See Staff Preliminary Proposals for updated policies responding to Provincial Policy directives in a number of the areas addressed by this recommendation

3.4.5 Quality and Access to Planning Associated Information (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
160. Make all city documents available	No additional input in support or in	Agree	Implemented by Planning Branch
electronically on-line in a timely	opposition to this recommendation was	Currently being done. Timing is subject to	
manner for public review	received	translation and accessibility requirements.	This is not implemented through the City
			Official Plan.
		Reports associated with a development	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
		application are now provided with the online development tracking system See 98 above	
161. City should set standards for report quality and have a regular auditing process (refers to reports submitted by developers)	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part The City does not have a lot of control over the quality of reports prepared by developers. However, policies are being proposed to increase the technical quality of studies undertaken in support of development proposals. The Official Plan specifies the types of reports required and outlines the content of those reports. The City seeks peer review by experts when necessary and endeavours to obtain all the information needed to make a decision. To assist in obtaining more consistency in reports Draft guidelines for Hydrogeological Studies and Environmental Impact Statements are being prepared. The purpose of these is to bring consistency to the consultant reports. Improvement in the quality of internal staff reports is an ongoing objective and is supported by staff training.	Policies and process to improve the quality of studies undertaken in support of development are included in the Staff Preliminary Proposals.

3.4.6 Communication (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
162. The "Executive Summary" of the	All Yes	Agree	In Progress
document, as well as the title should		See 161 above	This is not implemented through the City
make it easy to screen through			Official Plan.
developments and to determine			

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
which of those the public should review.			
163. A Ward based (not run by councillors) web site making it easy to learn about all developments underway in a specific Ward (and in a timely updated manner) needs to be developed	The City Website has already undergone a significant improvement in the way it provides access to information. Generally supportive of concept but divided on whether it should be Ward or topic based. Many felt that Ward based information could be co-ordinated by Councillors but built around a standard format. Some confused why councillors should not participate. There is a need to demonstrate cost effectiveness and usefulness of this recommendation.	Agree The online Development Tracking System (See 98 above) was initiated in May 08 Ward. This tracking system is not on a Ward based website but is searchable by ward if required.	Implemented by Planning Branch This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.

3.4.7 Conflicts of Interest (Process)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
164. For developments that are being	One respondent disagreed.	The Conservation Authorities have	This is not a City responsibility nor is it
reviewed by CAs, the	Recommendation reflects lack of	"Conflict Of Interest" guidelines and are	implemented through the City Official
representatives of that municipality	understanding of the role of the Board of	responsible for ensuring that they are	Plan.
(ies), which benefit from the	directors on and the function of	adhered to.	
development should excuse	Conservation Authorities		
themselves from voting on the			
development.			
165. The criteria for board members on	One respondent disagreed. Recommendation	Not a	This is not a City responsibility nor is it
the CA should require that the	reflects lack of understanding of the role of	The Conservation Authorities Act requires	implemented through the City Official
putative member have the	the Board of Directors on and the function	that the Municipalities within the watershed	Plan.
appropriate credentials (e.g. have	of Conservation Authorities.	appoint Board Members. See the Act.	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Staff Response	Staff Proposals
environmental concern and expertise, not just be placed on the board as they are councillors)		http://www.e-laws.gov.on.ca/html/statutes/english/elawsstatutes 90c27 e.htm The Council is responsible for nominating members to these authorities. Note: Most comments provided by Conservation Authorities to the City in regard to development proposals are provided by Authority Staff without reference to the appointed Board.	
166. That the CA delegates(send) some difficult developments back to the Government agencies to avoid conflicts of interest.	One respondent disagreed. Recommendation reflects lack of understanding of the role of the Board of directors on and the function of Conservation Authorities.	The Conservation Authority has a mandate under the Conservation Authorities Act, which are not transferable. Comments provided by the Conservation Authority, to the City, in regard to development proposals are just comments and the final decision are the responsibility of the City.	This is not a City responsibility nor is it implemented through the City Official Plan.
167. That City staff develop appropriate procedures to remove the perception that City staff and developers are working together (particularly at public meetings)	General agreement. People agreed that the task is controlling the perception and ensuring that there is balance.	Agree It is the City's position that staff should have a positive relationship with all clients - developers and community alike. This is a matter for individual managers to monitor and staff to be cognisant of.	In Progress This is not implemented through the City Official Plan.

Agriculture Working Group Recommendations

Issue A: Erosion of Land Base (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
168. Change the maximum lot size score (in LEAR criteria) to parcels of 10 acres or greater.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part The Ministry of Agriculture Food and Rural Affairs is reviewing LEAR. It is suggested that no changes to the City's LEAR evaluation be made until that review is completed. The City will then determine if suggested changes will have a significant impact on the area of land designated for agriculture.	No current action recommended pending OMAFRA's update of the LEAR technique. Not included in the Preliminary Proposals
169. Change LEAR criteria to make it harder to re-designate Agricultural land.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Staff will pass this information to the Ministry of Agriculture Food and Rural Affair for its review of the LEAR criteria	No current action recommended pending OMAFRA's update of the LEAR technique. Not included in the Preliminary Proposals
170. The LEAR should be revised so that the current appearance or use of agricultural land is not a factor.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Staff will pass this information to the Ministry of Agriculture Food and Rural Affair for its review of the LEAR criteria	No current action recommended pending OMAFRA's update of the LEAR technique. Not included in the Preliminary Proposals
171. The LEAR scoring system should score Class 1-3 land the maximum value, while a rated score would apply to parcels of Class 4-7 lands.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part LEAR already scores these soil types the highest in the evaluation system but other elements are also considered when determining the extent of the Agricultural Resource Area. See 168 above	No current action recommended pending OMAFRA's update of the LEAR technique. Not included in the Preliminary Proposals

Issue B. Minimum Separation Distances (MDS I) (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
172. Work with OMAFRA to modify MDS I calculations, or the City imposes separation distances greater than MDS I, between existing Livestock operations and all new non-farm development	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in Part The MDS formulae were revised in 2006. These are unlikely to be significantly revised again for some time. The City will forward group's comments to OMAFRA. The adoption of greater setbacks from livestock operations would be difficult for the city to justify given that he MDS already does this and is based upon recognised standards. Greater setbacks would be difficult to defend if challenged. A similar approach would be to restrict development close to Agricultural Resource Areas or encourage far less development outside of Villages.	This is a Provincial Guideline and is outside of Official Plan Policy. No discussion was included in the preliminary proposals and no change to the Official Plan flows from this recommendation. See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 5.5 Agriculture Staff are recommending policy changes to provide greater flexibility in respect to MDS II when Farmers are expanding existing livestock operations.
173. Farmers can register intentions to expand with the City of Ottawa and City takes into consideration future expansion when applying MDS I.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in principle. However, registration of this intent is not possible without lodging a Site Plan Application or Building Permit. A better mechanism may be the early inclusion of adjacent farmers in the public consultation see 174 below.	This action lies outside of the Official Plan and would require the some formalised application to be imitated by the farmer. No change to the Official Plan is required.

Issue C. Restrictions on Farm Expansion (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
174. When the City is approached about a	No additional input in support or in	Agree in principle	No Official Plan change is required to
possible development near a farm it	opposition to this recommendation was	Pre-consultation may be difficult to arrange	mplement consultation where possible.
should invite all farmers (those who	received	but wider and more comprehensive	
own or lease farm lands) within a		notification has been recommended by the	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed
two-kilometre radius of the proposed		Process Group. The upcoming on-line	See Staff Preliminary Proposals

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
development or boundary expansion to participate in the pre-consultation process.		development notification system will also provide adjacent landowners more information earlier in the development review process. This may assist in allowing greater input by adjacent farmers concerned about the impact development will have on their farm operation or expansion plans. The new Ministry Guidelines for MDS II provide the City options to consider variances to the calculated separation distance required for expanding livestock operations in some circumstances. In order to take advantage of this policies are required in the Official Plan. Changes are proposed to the Plan to enable variances to MDS II.	Section 5.5 Agriculture Staff are recommending policy changes to provide greater flexibility in respect to MDS II when armers are expanding existing livestock operations.
large development and agri-business has a voice with political and senior City officials and their voice is largely unheard at that level, particularly relative to the voices of the development community. The City needs to take steps to balance access to the decision-making process by giving farmers an increased profile in this area.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	This is not a land use matter and is not included in the OP but has been forwarded to the Rural Affairs Office to pursue. The Rural Affairs Office actively engages farming organizations (such as the Ontario Federation of Agriculture) and individual farmers and assists them getting their voice heard.	The Rural Affairs Office can facilitate discussions between senior City staff and agri-business representatives when required This does not require new or changed policy in the Official Plan.
176. Development within the urban or village boundaries should be promoted as a way of taking development pressures off rural	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part There is also a desire in the rural community to continue to provide choice in where people live. This matter that was raised by	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.3 Urban Intensification and

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
lands, where conflicts occur between		the Development Outside of Villages Group.	Section 5.1 Development in Villages for
residents and farmers.		See 2 above	staff recommendations on development
		Also staff are recommending policies to	within the Urban Area and Villages.
		encourage urban intensification.	
			ļ

Issue D. Need to Review and Clean up Agricultural Designation Boundary in West Carleton. (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
177. Review designation changes made by West Carleton at the time of amalgamation.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree. Some small changes are appropriate at the boundary of the designation and are proposed as part of the OP review	Changes to the Official Plan are proposed The Staff Preliminary Proposals report mentions these changes. Mapping associated with these changes will be available in the fall after all impacted land owners have been advised of the proposed changes.
178. Include a statement in the OP that: "That city staff be open to reviewing applications from landowners for boundary adjustments where circumstances and/or evidence support it."	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree The City is required to review all applications for changes to the Official Plan Applications to amend the designation of land within the Agricultural Resource Area will not be considered for small areas of land that have the impact of fragmenting the designation. However, the re-designation of parcels located on the perimeter of the designation will be reviewed using the same criteria as used in LEAR and the criteria of the PPS.	This is a process policy that sits outside of the Official Plan.

Issue E. Municipal Regulations and Other Matters(Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
179. The City should review its building	No additional input in support or in	Building Permit issues were a significant	This is a process policy that does not
permit process to reasonably	opposition to this recommendation was	topic of discussion at the Rural Summit II.	require a change to the Official Plan.
accommodate agricultural requests.	received	Priority #6 of 122 was "Work to improve the	
		building permit review process".	This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
			Affairs Office to follow up
		Such a review of the building permit process	
		will be considered in the work plan resulting	
		from the Rural Summit recommendations,	
		subject to the approval of City Council.	
180. A new category for agricultural	No additional input in support or in	This is a process matter that will be	This is a process policy that does not
structures must be created.	opposition to this recommendation was	forwarded to the Chief Building Official	require a change to the Official Plan.
structures must be created.	received	Torwarded to the emer Banding efficial	require a change to the official Flan.
		The City of Ottawa must follow the Ontario	This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
		Building Code, which recognizes the	Affairs Office to follow up
		National Farm Building Code.	·
		The City can have separate fee categories	
		and discounted permit fees already exist for	
		building permits for farm structures. The	
		City also does not levee Development	
		Charges for farm buildings.	
181. City of Ottawa decision makers	No additional input in support or in	Agree in part	This is a process policy that does not
should become more aware of the	opposition to this recommendation was		require a change to the Official Plan.
realities of the rural / agricultural	received		
community and champion the cause		The Rural Affairs Office actively engages	This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
of farming within the city limits.		farming organizations (such as the Ontario	Affairs Office to follow up
		Federation of Agriculture) and individual	
		farmers and champions the cause of	
		farming, including through grants and other	
		means of support both financial and non-	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
		financial. As well, the City's Rural Affairs Office actively supports "Savour Ottawa", an organization for marketing of locally produced agricultural products. The Rural Affairs Office attends all Agriculture and Rural Affairs Committee meetings and comments on staff reports, ensuring that the realities of agriculture and farming are considered. The Rural Affairs Office also assists other City departments when requested to ensure active involvement of the agricultural community on specific issues and projects.	
182. The City of Ottawa should develop and promote awareness and education material that outline the realities of rural living to new rural residents or provide resources to other groups to champion this cause.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Agree in part Conditions of approval for rural subdivisions include a statement that is placed on the title of each lot, drawing the owner's attention to the fact they are living in the rural area that also includes farming operations and that their property may be subject to the impacts of those operations. When requested, the City also signposts animal crossings. Providing information to rural property owners was presented as a topic of discussion at Rural Summit II. One recommendation of the Summit (#70 of 122) was as follows: City could develop an information package for new rural	This is a process policy that does not require a change to the Official Plan. This matter has been forwarded to the Rural Affairs Office to follow up

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
		residents. Included would be: letter of welcome; who to call list; and well and septic information.	
		Other information related to the realities of rural life and living as a neighbour with agricultural operations could also be considered for inclusion.	
		This is on the work plan resulting from the Rural Summit recommendations; Implementation will be subject to the approval of City Council and appropriate budget allocation.	

Issue F. Consideration of the Farming Community in Other Matters. (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
183. The composition of the City's Rural	No additional input in support or in	This has been implemented – two additional	This is a process policy that does not
Issues Advisory Committee (RIAC)	opposition to this recommendation was	spots specifically for farmers have been	require a change to the Official Plan.
should be amended to include	received	added to RIAC.	
greater representation from local			This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
farmers.			Affairs Office to follow up
104 771 1 . 1 111 6 . 1	AT 11''. 1'		
184. The above issues should be referred	No additional input in support or in	The Rural Issues Advisory Committee	This is a process policy that does not
to the RIAC, to develop solutions	opposition to this recommendation was	controls their own agenda and accepts	require a change to the Official Plan.
and an implementation plan for	received	agenda items from the public. The	
these and other related issues, in		Committee welcomes presentations at their	This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
2008.		meetings.	Affairs Office to follow up
		If members of the public wish to speak to	
		RIAC and discuss rural issues, they can	
		contact the Rural Affairs Office for	
		information on how to be added to an	
		upcoming agenda or contact RIAC directly.	

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
185. Providing other opportunities for bona fide farmers to sever 'special lots' on land they own outside the agricultural resource area, subject to separation conditions, and irrespective of the number of lots that are permitted for other landowners in the General Rural Area and Rural Natural Features designations.	No additional input in support or in opposition to this recommendation was received	Disagree. There is no basis for granting more rights to sever lots to a farmer than to any other landowner in the same area. No change in policy is recommended	No changes to the current severance policies to permit special lots for farmers are recommended. See Staff Preliminary Proposals Section 1.4 Rural Development

Issue G: Clarity of Jurisdiction and Approval Process for Farm and Municipal Watercourses. (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
186. That a committee with	No additional input in support or in	This matter is being investigated and more	This is a process policy that does not
representation from OMAFRA,	opposition to this recommendation was	details may be provided in the final	require a change to the Official Plan.
OFA, Ont. Landowners Association,	received	response.	
Department of Fisheries and Oceans,			This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
Ministry of Natural Resources			Affairs Office to follow up
(MNR), Conservation Authorities,			
Municipal Officials and Agriculture			
Canada be constituted and mandated			
to study and put forward			
recommendations on how to achieve			
these goals.			

Issue H. Provincial or Federal Regulations. (Agriculture)

Recommendation	Public Comment	Action	Staff Preliminary Proposals
187. The Rural Issues Advisory	No additional input in support or in	The Rural Issues Advisory Committee	This is a process policy that does not
Committee should work with the	opposition to this recommendation was	controls their own agenda and accepts	require a change to the Official Plan.
City to influence the higher levels of	received	agenda items from the public. The	
government on these and other		Committee welcomes presentations at their	This matter has been forwarded to the Rural
similar issues.		meetings.	Affairs Office to follow up